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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

Sunoco.jpg

FORM 10-Q
☒ QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)

 OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the Quarterly Period Ended: March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024

or

☐ TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)
 OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

Commission File Number: 001-35653

SUNOCO LP
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter) 

Delaware 30-0740483

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) (I.R.S. Employer Identification Number)

8111 Westchester Drive, Suite 400, Dallas, Texas 75225
(Address of principal executive offices, including zip code)

(214) 981-0700

(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code)

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

Title of each class
Trading

Symbol(s) Name of each exchange on which registered

Common Units Representing Limited Partner

Interests SUN New York Stock Exchange

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was
required to file such reports), and (2)  has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90
days.    Yes  ý    No  ☐
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Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically every Interactive Data File required to be
submitted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (Section 232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or
for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit such files).    Yes  ý    No  ☐

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, a
smaller reporting company or an emerging growth company. See the definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated
filer,” “smaller reporting company” and “emerging growth company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer ý Accelerated filer
☐

Non-accelerated filer ☐ Smaller reporting company
☐

Emerging Growth
company ☐

If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition
period for complying with any new or revised financial accounting standards provided pursuant to Section 13(a) of the
Exchange Act. ☐

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange
Act.):    Yes  ☐     No  ý

The registrant had 84,453,339 135,997,962 common units and 16,410,780 Class C units, both representing limited
partner interests outstanding as of May 2, 2024 August 2, 2024.

Table of Contents

SUNOCO LP
FORM 10-Q

TABLE OF CONTENTS
 

PART PART I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Financial Statements 3

Consolidated Balance Sheets 3

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income 4

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income 5

Consolidated Statements of Equity 5 6

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 6 7

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 7 8

1. 1. Organization and Principles of Consolidation 7

https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us


REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com |
Contact Us
©2024 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including
by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written
consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are
registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies.

4/81

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 7

3. Acquisitions and Divestitures 7

4. Accounts Receivable, net 8

5. 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Inventories,

net  8

3. Acquisitions, Divestitures and Other Transactions 9

4. Accounts Receivable, net 12

5. Inventories, net  12

6. Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities 9 12

7. Long-Term Debt net Obligations 9 13

8. Other Non-Current Liabilities 10 14

9. Related Party Transactions 10 14

10. Revenue 10 15

11. Commitments and Contingencies 11 17

12. Income Tax Expense 12 17

13. Equity 12 17

14. Segment Reporting 13 18

15. 15. Net Income per Common Unit 14 20

Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 15 21

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk 21 31

Item 4. Controls and Procedures 23 32

PART II - OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings 24 33

Item 1A. Risk Factors 24 33

Item 6. Exhibits 27 33

SIGNATURE SIGNATURE 30 39

https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us


REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com |
Contact Us
©2024 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including
by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written
consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are
registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies.

5/81

Table of Contents

PART I – FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Financial Statements
SUNOCO LP

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Dollars in millions)

(unaudited)

March 31,


2024

December 31,


2023

June 30,


2024

December 31,


2023

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable, net

Accounts receivable, net

Accounts receivable, net

Accounts receivable from affiliates

Inventories, net

Other current assets

Assets held for sale

Total current assets

Total current assets

Total current assets

Property and equipment

Property and equipment

Property and equipment

Accumulated depreciation

Property and equipment, net

Other assets:

Operating lease right-of-use assets, net

Operating lease right-of-use assets, net

Operating lease right-of-use assets, net
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Goodwill

Intangible assets, net

Other non-current assets

Investments in unconsolidated affiliates

Total assets

Total assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accounts payable

Accounts payable

Accounts payable to affiliates

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities

Operating lease current liabilities

Current maturities of long-term debt

Liabilities associated with assets held for sale

Liabilities associated with assets held for sale

Liabilities associated with assets held for sale

Total current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Operating lease non-current liabilities

Operating lease non-current liabilities

Operating lease non-current liabilities

Long-term debt, net

Long-term debt, net

Long-term debt, net

Advances from affiliates

Deferred tax liabilities
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Other non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (Note 11)

Commitments and contingencies (Note 11)

Commitments and contingencies (Note 11)

Equity:

Equity:

Equity:

Limited partners:

Limited partners:

Limited partners:

Common unitholders

(84,428,109 units issued and outstanding as of March 31, 2024 and

84,408,014 units issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2023)

Common unitholders

(84,428,109 units issued and outstanding as of March 31, 2024 and

84,408,014 units issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2023)

Common unitholders

(84,428,109 units issued and outstanding as of March 31, 2024 and

84,408,014 units issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2023)

Class C unitholders - held by subsidiaries

(16,410,780 units issued and outstanding as of March 31, 2024 and

December 31, 2023)

Common unitholders

(135,997,962 units issued and outstanding as of June 30, 2024 and

84,408,014 units issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2023)

Common unitholders

(135,997,962 units issued and outstanding as of June 30, 2024 and

84,408,014 units issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2023)

Common unitholders

(135,997,962 units issued and outstanding as of June 30, 2024 and

84,408,014 units issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2023)

Class C unitholders - held by subsidiaries

(16,410,780 units issued and outstanding as of June 30, 2024 and

December 31, 2023)

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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SUNOCO LP
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(Dollars in millions, except per unit data)
(unaudited)

Three Months Ended March 31,

2024 2023

REVENUES:

Motor fuel sales $ 5,366  $ 5,239 

Non-motor fuel sales 95  86 

Lease income 38  37 

Total revenues 5,499  5,362 

COST OF SALES AND OPERATING EXPENSES:

Cost of sales 5,015  4,987 

General and administrative 36  29 

Other operating 88  82 

Lease expense 18  16 

Loss on disposal of assets 2  1 

Depreciation, amortization and accretion 43  48 

Total cost of sales and operating expenses 5,202  5,163 

OPERATING INCOME 297  199 

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE):

Interest expense, net (63) (53)

Other income, net 1  — 

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates 2  2 

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES 237  148 

Income tax expense 7  7 

NET INCOME AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME $ 230  $ 141 

NET INCOME PER COMMON UNIT:

Basic $ 2.29  $ 1.43 

Diluted $ 2.26  $ 1.41 

WEIGHTED AVERAGE COMMON UNITS OUTSTANDING:

https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us


REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com |
Contact Us
©2024 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including
by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written
consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are
registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies.

9/81

Basic 84,424,748  84,058,716 

Diluted 85,259,238  84,970,826 

CASH DISTRIBUTIONS PER UNIT $ 0.8756  $ 0.8420 

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,

2024 2023 2024 2023

Revenues:

Sales revenue $ 5,851  $ 5,643  $ 11,249  $ 10,915 

Service revenue 293  65  356  118 

Lease revenue 30  37  68  74 

6,174  5,745  11,673  11,107 

Costs and Expenses:

Cost of sales 5,609  5,431  10,624  10,418 

Operating expenses 134  87  222  169 

General and administrative 134  33  170  62 

Lease expense 17  17  35  33 

Loss (gain) on disposal of assets and impairment
charges 52  (13) 54  (12)

Depreciation, amortization and accretion 78  49  121  97 

Total cost of sales and operating expenses 6,024  5,604  11,226  10,767 

Operating Income 150  141  447  340 

Other Income (Expense):

Interest expense, net (95) (53) (158) (106)

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates 2  1  4  3 

Gain on West Texas Sale 598  —  598  — 

Loss on extinguishment of debt (2) —  (2) — 

Other, net (3) 7  (2) 7 

Income before Income Taxes 650  96  887  244 

Income tax expense 149  9  156  16 

Net Income 501  87  731  228 

Less: Net income attributable to noncontrolling

interests 8  —  8  — 

Net Income Attributable to Partners $ 493  $ 87  $ 723  $ 228 
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Net Income per Common Unit:

Basic $ 3.88  $ 0.79  $ 6.43  $ 2.21 

Diluted $ 3.85  $ 0.78  $ 6.37  $ 2.19 

Weighted Average Common Units Outstanding:

Basic 117,271,408  84,060,866  100,848,078  84,059,797 

Diluted 118,054,858  85,034,268  101,657,076  84,998,777 

Cash Distribution per Unit $ 0.8756  $ 0.8420  $ 1.7512  $ 1.6840 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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SUNOCO LP
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(Dollars in millions)
(unaudited)

Balance, December 31, 2023 $ 978 

Cash distributions to unitholders, including incentive distributions (91)

Unit-based compensation 4 

Net income 230 

Balance, March 31, 2024 $ 1,121 

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,

2024 2023 2024 2023

Net Income $ 501  $ 87  $ 731  $ 228 

Other comprehensive loss, net of tax

Foreign currency translation adjustment (1) —  (1) — 

Actuarial loss related to pension and other

postretirement benefit plans (1) —  (1) — 

Total other comprehensive loss (2) —  (2) — 
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Comprehensive Income $ 499  $ 87  $ 729  $ 228 

Balance, December 31, 2022 $ 942 

Cash distributions to unitholders, including incentive distributions (88)

Unit-based compensation 5 

Net income 141 

Balance, March 31, 2023 $ 1,000 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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SUNOCO LP
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS EQUITY

(Dollars in millions)
(unaudited)

Three Months Ended March 31,

2024 2023

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net income $ 230  $ 141 

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation, amortization and accretion 43  48 

Amortization of deferred financing fees 9  2 

Loss on disposal of assets 2  1 

Non-cash unit-based compensation expense 4  5 

Deferred income tax 4  4 

Inventory valuation adjustments (130) (29)

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates (2) (2)

Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of acquisitions:

Accounts receivable, net (55) 317 

Receivables from affiliates (6) (2)

Inventories, net 53  82 

Other assets (6) (13)

Accounts payable 201  (225)
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Accounts payable to affiliates —  16 

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities (57) (19)

Other non-current liabilities (4) — 

Net cash provided by operating activities 286  326 

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Capital expenditures (41) (37)

Cash paid for acquisition (185) — 

Distributions from unconsolidated affiliates in excess of cumulative earnings 1  3 

Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment 2  3 

Net cash used in investing activities (223) (31)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Credit Facility borrowings 889  759 

Credit Facility repayments (675) (859)

Cash distributions to unitholders, including incentive distributions (91) (88)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 123  (188)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 186  107 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 29  82 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 215  $ 189 

Common

Unitholders

Accumulated

Other

Comprehensive

Income

Noncontrolling

Interest Total

Balance, December 31, 2023 $ 978  $ —  $ —  $ 978 

Cash distributions to unitholders, including incentive
distributions (91) —  —  (91)

Unit-based compensation 4  —  —  4 

Net income 230  —  —  230 

Balance, March 31, 2024 1,121  —  —  1,121 

Cash distributions to unitholders, including incentive
distributions (158) —  (8) (166)

Unit-based compensation 4  —  —  4 

Other comprehensive loss, net of tax —  (2) —  (2)

NuStar acquisition 2,850  —  801  3,651 

Preferred unit redemption 17  —  (801) (784)
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Other (3) 8  —  5 

Net income 493  —  8  501 

Balance, June 30, 2024 $ 4,324  $ 6  $ —  $ 4,330 

Common

Unitholders Total

Balance, December 31, 2022 $ 942  $ 942 

Cash distributions to unitholders, including incentive distributions (88) (88)

Unit-based compensation 5  5 

Net income 141  141 

Balance, March 31, 2023 1,000  1,000 

Cash distributions to unitholders, including incentive distributions (92) (92)

Unit-based compensation 4  4 

Net income 87  87 

Balance, June 30, 2023 $ 999  $ 999 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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SUNOCO LP
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Dollars in millions)
(unaudited)

Six Months Ended June 30,

2024 2023

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net income $ 731  $ 228 

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation, amortization and accretion 121  97 

Amortization of deferred financing fees 6  4 

(Gain) loss on disposal of assets and impairment charges 54  (12)
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Loss on extinguishment of debt 2  — 

Gain on West Texas Sale (598) — 

Other non-cash, net 3  — 

Non-cash unit-based compensation expense 8  9 

Deferred income tax expense (benefit) (64) 5 

Inventory valuation adjustments (98) 28 

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates (4) (3)

Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of acquisitions and divestitures:

Accounts receivable, net (68) 347 

Receivables from affiliates (13) 4 

Inventories, net (53) (138)

Other assets 61  14 

Accounts payable 205  (156)

Accounts payable to affiliates (56) (40)

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 65  33 

Other non-current liabilities (86) (3)

Net cash provided by operating activities 216  417 

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Capital expenditures (111) (87)

Cash paid for acquisition (185) (111)

NuStar acquisition, net of cash received 27  — 

Distributions from unconsolidated affiliates in excess of cumulative earnings 4  5 

Proceeds from West Texas Sale 990  — 

Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment 2  21 

Other —  2 

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 727  (170)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Senior Notes borrowings 1,500  — 

Senior Notes repayments (405) — 

Credit Facility borrowings 1,241  1,555 

Credit Facility repayments (2,022) (1,465)

Loan origination costs (19) — 

Preferred units redemption (784) — 

Cash distributions to unitholders, including incentive distributions (249) (180)
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Cash distributions to noncontrolling interests (8) — 

Net cash used in financing activities (746) (90)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 197  157 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 29  82 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 226  $ 239 

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing and financing activities:

Units issued in connection with NuStar acquisition $ 2,850  $ — 

Lease assets obtained in exchange for new lease liabilities $ 1  $ 1 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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SUNOCO LP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Tabular dollar amounts, except per unit data, are in millions)
(unaudited)

1. Organization and Principles of Consolidation

As used in this document, the terms “Partnership,” “we,” “us,” “our” or “SUN” should be understood to refer to
Sunoco LP and its consolidated subsidiaries, unless the context clearly indicates otherwise.

We are a Delaware master limited partnership. We are managed by our general partner, Sunoco GP LLC (our
“General Partner”), which is owned by Energy Transfer LP (“Energy Transfer”). As of March 31, 2024 June 30,
2024, Energy Transfer owned 100% of the limited liability company interests in our General Partner, 28,463,967 of
our common units and all of our incentive distribution rights (“IDRs”).

The consolidated financial statements include Sunoco LP, a publicly traded Delaware limited partnership, and its
wholly owned subsidiaries. In the opinion of the Partnership’s management, such financial information reflects all
adjustments necessary for a fair presentation of the financial position and the results of operations for such interim
periods in accordance with GAAP. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation.

The operations of certain pipelines and terminals in which we own an undivided interest are proportionately
consolidated in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Certain items have been reclassified for presentation purposes to conform to the accounting policies of the
consolidated entity. These reclassifications had no material impact on operating income, net income and
comprehensive income, the consolidated balance sheets or consolidated statements of cash flows.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
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Interim Financial Statements

The accompanying interim consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”). Pursuant to Regulation S-X, certain information and
disclosures normally included in the annual consolidated financial statements have been condensed or omitted.
The interim consolidated financial statements and notes included herein should be read in conjunction with the
consolidated financial statements and notes included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2023 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) on February 16, 2024.

Significant Accounting Policies

As The Partnership began implementing the significant accounting policies described below subsequent to the
closing of March 31, 2024 the NuStar acquisition. Besides those described below, as of June 30, 2024, there have
been no changes in the Partnership's significant accounting policies from those described in the Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023 filed with the SEC on February 16, 2024.

Restricted Cash

As of June 30, 2024, we have restricted cash representing legally restricted funds that are unavailable for general
use totaling $9 million which is included in “Other non-current assets” on the consolidated balance sheets.

Defined Benefit Plans

We estimate pension and other postretirement benefit obligations and costs based on actuarial valuations. The
annual measurement date for our pension and other postretirement benefit plans is December 31. The actuarial
valuations require the use of certain assumptions including discount rates, expected long-term rates of return on
plan assets and expected rates of compensation increase. Changes in these assumptions are primarily influenced
by factors outside our control.

Foreign Currency Translation

The functional currencies of our foreign subsidiaries are the local currencies of the countries in which the
subsidiaries are located. The assets and liabilities of our foreign subsidiaries with local functional currencies are
translated to U.S. dollars at period-end exchange rates, and income and expense items are translated to U.S.
dollars at weighted-average exchange rates in effect during the period. These translation adjustments are included
in accumulated other comprehensive income ("AOCI") in the equity section of the consolidated balance sheets.
Upon the sale or liquidation of our investment in a foreign subsidiary, translation adjustments that have historically
accumulated in AOCI related to that subsidiary are released from AOCI and reported as part of the gain or loss on
sale. Gains and losses on foreign currency transactions are included in other income (expense), net in the
consolidated statements of operations.
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Motor Fuel and Sales Taxes

Certain motor fuel and sales taxes are collected from customers and remitted to governmental agencies either
directly by the Partnership or through suppliers. The Partnership’s accounting policy for wholesale direct sales to
dealers, distributors and commercial customers is to exclude the collected motor fuel tax from sales and cost of
sales.
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For retail locations where the Partnership holds inventory, including commission agent locations, motor fuel sales
and motor fuel cost of sales include motor fuel taxes. Such amounts were $59$41 million and $65 $71 million for
the three months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively, and $100 million and $136 million
for the six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. Merchandise sales and cost of merchandise sales
are reported net of sales tax in our consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income.

3. Acquisitions, Divestitures and Divestitures Other Transactions

Acquisitions

NuStar

On May 3, 2024, we completed the previously announced acquisition of NuStar Energy L.P. (“NuStar”). Under the
terms of the agreement, NuStar common unitholders received 0.400 SUN common units for each NuStar common
unit. In connection with the acquisition, we issued approximately 50.6 51.5 million common units, which had a fair
value of approximately $2.8 $2.85  billion, assumed debt totaling approximately $3.4 $3.5  billion including
approximately $56 million of lease related financing obligations and assumed preferred units with a fair value of
approximately $800 million. NuStar has approximately 9,500 miles of pipeline and 63 terminal and storage facilities
that store and distribute crude oil, refined products, renewable fuels, ammonia and specialty liquids. Beginning May
2024, SUN’s consolidated financial statements will reflect NuStar

The acquisition was recorded using the acquisition method of accounting which requires, among other things, that
assets and liabilities assumed be recognized on the balance sheet at their estimated fair values as of the date of
acquisition, with any excess purchase price over the fair value of net assets acquired recorded to goodwill.
Management, with the assistance of a third party valuation specialist, determined the preliminary fair value of
assets and liabilities as of the date of the acquisition. Determining the fair value involves the use of management's
judgements as well as the use of significant estimates and assumptions. The following table summarizes the
preliminary allocation of the purchase price among assets acquired and liabilities assumed:
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As of


May 3, 2024

Total current assets $ 186 

Property and equipment 6,958 

Operating lease right-of-use assets, net 136 

Goodwill (1) 16 

Intangible assets, net (2) 195 

Other non-current assets 127 

Total assets 7,618 

Total current liabilities 245 

Long-term debt, less current maturities (3) 3,500 

Operating lease non-current liabilities 136 

Deferred tax liabilities 4 

Other non-current liabilities 82 

Total liabilities 3,967 

Preferred units (3) 801 

Total consideration 2,850 

Cash acquired 27 

Total cash consideration, net of cash acquired $ 2,823 

(1) Goodwill primarily represents expected commercial and operational synergies and is subject to change based
on final purchase price allocations. None of the goodwill recorded as a result of this transaction is deductible for
tax purposes. Goodwill of $16 million relates to the Fuel Distribution segment.

(2) Intangible assets, net comprised $151 million of favorable contracts, with a remaining weighted average life of
approximately 7 years, and $44 million of customer relationships, with a remaining weighted average life of
approximately 15 years.
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(3) Subsequent to the closing of the NuStar acquisition, the Partnership redeemed all outstanding NuStar
preferred units, totaling $784 million, redeemed NuStar's subordinated notes totaling $403 million and repaid
and terminated the NuStar credit facility totaling $455 million.
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Subsequent to the NuStar acquisition, the Partnership purchased a property previously leased by NuStar and
cancelled the lease, resulting in an impairment of $50 million based on the value of comparable real property.

Pro Forma Results of Operations

The following unaudited pro forma consolidated subsidiary. At results of operations for the time three and six
months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 are presented as if the NuStar acquisition had been completed on January
1, 2023.

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,

2024 2023 2024 2023

Revenues $ 6,306  $ 6,122  $ 12,195  $ 11,877 

Net income 411  108  659  249 

Net income attributable to partners 365  96  564  204 

Basic net income per Common Unit $ 2.71  $ 0.71  $ 4.17  $ 1.50 

Diluted net income per Common Unit $ 2.70  $ 0.70  $ 4.15  $ 1.49 

The pro forma consolidated results of operations include adjustments to:

• include the results of NuStar for all periods presented;

• include the incremental expenses associated with the fair value adjustments recorded as a result of applying
the acquisition method of accounting;

• include incremental interest expense related to financing the transactions;

• adjust for one-time expenses; and

• adjust for relative changes in ownership resulting from the acquisition.

The pro forma information is not necessarily indicative of the results of operations that would have occurred had
the NuStar acquisition been made at the beginning of the periods presented or the future results of the combined
operations.

NuStar's revenue and net income since the acquisition date to June 30, 2024 included in our consolidated financial
statements statement of operations were issued, the initial accounting for this business combination was
incomplete due $269.4 million and $14.5 million, respectively.

Expenses related to the timing NuStar Acquisition

As a result of the close acquisition, we recognized $83  million of merger-related costs during the acquisition;
therefore, certain required disclosures have not been included herein. six months ended June 30, 2024.
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Zenith European Terminals

On March 13, 2024, we completed the previously announced acquisition of liquid fuels terminals in Amsterdam,
Netherlands and Bantry Bay, Ireland from Zenith Energy for €170 million ($185 million), including working capital.
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The acquisition was recorded using the acquisition method of accounting which requires, among other things, that
assets and liabilities assumed be recognized on the balance sheet at their estimated fair values as of the date of
acquisition. Management, with the assistance of an independent a third party valuation firm, specialist, determined
the preliminary fair value of assets and liabilities as of the date of the acquisition. Determining the fair value
involves the use of management's judgements as well as the use of significant estimates and assumptions. The
following table summarizes the preliminary allocation of the purchase price among assets acquired and liabilities
assumed:

As of


March 13,

2024

Other current assets $ 6 

Property and equipment 204 

Goodwill 7 

Other non-current assets 36 

Current liabilities (14)

Deferred tax liabilities (11)

Other non-current liabilities (43)

Net Assets assets 185 

Cash acquired — 

Total cash consideration, net of cash acquired $ 185 

Divestiture

West Texas Sale

On April 16, 2024, we completed the previously announced sale of 204 convenience stores located in West Texas,
New Mexico and Oklahoma to 7-Eleven, Inc. for approximately $1.0 billion, including customary adjustments for
fuel and merchandise inventory. As part of the sale, SUN also amended its existing take-or-pay fuel supply
agreement with 7-Eleven, Inc. to incorporate additional fuel gross profit. The following table presents Upon the
aggregate carrying amount completion of the sale, the Partnership recorded a $598 million gain ($461 million, net of
current tax expense of $199 million and deferred tax benefit of $62 million).

Other Transactions

Permian Joint Venture

On July 16, 2024, SUN and Energy Transfer announced the formation of a joint venture combining their respective
crude oil and produced water gathering assets in the Permian Basin. Pursuant to the Contribution Agreement by
and among Sunoco LP, SUN Pipeline Holdings LLC, NuStar Permian Transportation and Storage LLC, NuStar
Permian Crude Logistics LLC, NuStar Permian Holdings LLC, NuStar Logistics, L.P., ET-S Permian Holdings
Company LP, ET-S Permian Pipeline Company LLC, ET-S Permian Marketing Company LLC, Energy Transfer LP,
and Energy Transfer Crude Marketing, LLC dated July 14, 2024 in a cashless transaction, SUN contributed all of its
Permian crude oil gathering assets and liabilities operations to the joint venture. Additionally, Energy Transfer
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contributed its Permian crude oil and produced water gathering assets and operations to the joint venture. Energy
Transfer’s long-haul crude pipeline network that were classified as held for sale: provides transportation of crude oil
out of the Permian Basin to Nederland, Houston, and Cushing is excluded from the joint venture.

March 31,

2024

Carrying amount of assets held for sale:

Accounts receivable, net $ 18 

Inventories, net 14 

Other current assets 3 

Property and equipment, net 171 

Goodwill 145 

Intangible assets 12 

Other non-current assets 148 

Total assets held for sale $ 511 

Carrying amount of liabilities associated with assets held for sale:

Current liabilities $ 14 

Other non-current liabilities 116 

Total liabilities associated with assets held for sale $ 130 
The

joint venture operates more than 5,000 miles of crude oil and water gathering pipelines with crude oil storage
capacity in excess of 11 million barrels.

SUN holds a 32.5% interest with Energy Transfer holding the remaining 67.5% interest in the joint venture.

The formation of the joint venture was effective on July 1, 2024.
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4. Accounts Receivable, net

Accounts receivable, net, consisted of the following:

March 31,


2024

December 31,


2023

June 30,

2024

December 31,


2023

Accounts receivable, trade

Accounts receivable, trade

Accounts receivable, trade

Credit card receivables
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Other receivables

Other receivables

Other receivables

Allowance for expected credit losses

Accounts receivable, net

5. Inventories, net 

Fuel inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market using the last-in, first-out (“LIFO”) method. As of March
31, 2024 June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the Partnership’s fuel inventory balance included lower of cost or
market reserves of $100 $132 million and $230 million, respectively. For the three and six months ended March 31,
2024 June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Partnership’s consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income
did not include any material amounts of income from the liquidation of LIFO fuel inventory. For the three months
ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Partnership's cost of sales included unfavorable inventory
valuation adjustments of $32 million and $57 million, respectively, which decreased net income. For the six months
ended June 30, 2024, the Partnership's cost of sales included favorable inventory valuation adjustments of
$130 $98 million and $29 million, respectively, which increased  net income; and for the six months ended June 30,
2023, the Partnership's cost of sales included unfavorable inventory adjustments of $28 million which decreased
net income.

Inventories, net, consisted of the following:

March 31,


2024

December 31,


2023

June 30,


2024

December 31,


2023

Fuel

Fuel

Fuel

Other

Inventories, net

6. Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities consisted of the following:

March 31,


2024

December 31,


2023

June 30,


2024

December 31,


2023

Wage and other employee-related accrued expenses

Wage and other employee-related accrued expenses

Wage and other employee-related accrued expenses

Accrued tax expense
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Accrued insurance expense

Accrued interest expense

Dealer deposits

Accrued environmental expense

Deferred revenue

Other

Total
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7. Long-Term Debt net Obligations

Total long-term debt, net consisted of the following:

March 31,


2024

December 31,


2023

June 30,

2024

December 31,


2023

Credit Facility

Credit Facility

Credit Facility

5.750% Senior Notes due 2025 (1)

6.000% Senior Notes due 2026 (1)

6.000% Senior Notes due 2027

5.625% Senior Notes due 2027 (1)

5.875% Senior Notes due 2028

7.000% Senior Notes due 2028

4.500% Senior Notes due 2029

7.000% Senior Notes due 2029

4.500% Senior Notes due 2030

6.375% Senor Notes due 2030 (1)

7.250% Senior Notes due 2032

GoZone Bonds (1)

Lease-related financing obligations

Total long-term debt

Less: debt issuance costs

Less: debt issuance costs
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Less: debt issuance costs

Lease-related financing obligations

Lease-related financing obligations

Net unamortized premiums, discounts and fair value adjustments

Deferred debt issuance costs

Total debt

Less: current maturities

Total long-term debt, net

(1) These notes, totaling $2.57 billion aggregate principal amount, were assumed by the Partnership in connection
with the closing of the NuStar acquisition in May 2024.

Recent Transactions

April 2024 Notes Offering

On April 30, 2024, the Partnership issued $750  million of 7.000% senior notes Senior Notes due 2029 and
$750  million of 7.250% senior notes Senior Notes due 2032 in a private offering. The Partnership used the net
proceeds from the offering to (i) repay certain outstanding indebtedness of NuStar, in connection with the merger
between the Partnership and NuStar, (ii) fund the redemption of NuStar's preferred units in connection with the
merger and (iii) pay offering fees and expenses.

NuStar Acquisition

During the second quarter of 2024, subsequent to the closing of the NuStar acquisition, the Partnership redeemed
NuStar's subordinated notes totaling $403  million and repaid and terminated NuStar's credit facility totaling
$455 million.

NuStar Logistics Senior Notes. NuStar Logistics, L.P., a wholly owned subsidiary acquired in the NuStar
acquisition, (NuStar Logistics”) is the issuer of $2.25 billion of senior notes, including 5.750% Senior Notes due
2025, 6.000% Senior Notes due 2026, 5.625% Senior Notes due 2027 and 6.375% Senior Notes due 2030
(collectively, the “NuStar Logistics Senior Notes”). Subsequent to the closing of the NuStar acquisition, the
indentures related to the Partnership’s senior notes and the indentures related to NuStar Logistics’ senior notes
were amended to add certain subsidiaries as guarantors. Consequently, Sunoco LP and NuStar Logistics are each
a guarantor of the other’s senior notes, along with other subsidiary guarantors of each.

The NuStar Logistics Senior Notes do not have sinking fund requirements. These notes rank equally with existing
senior unsecured indebtedness and senior to existing subordinated indebtedness of NuStar Logistics and contain
restrictions on NuStar Logistics’ ability to incur secured indebtedness unless the same security is also provided for
the benefit of holders of the NuStar Logistics Senior Notes. In addition, the NuStar Logistics Senior Notes limit the
ability of NuStar Logistics and its subsidiaries to, among other things, incur indebtedness secured by certain liens,
engage in certain sale-leaseback transactions and engage in certain consolidations, mergers or asset sales. At the
option of NuStar Logistics, the NuStar Logistics Senior Notes may be redeemed in whole or in part at any time at a
redemption price, plus accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date. If we undergo a change of control that
is followed by a ratings decline that occurs within 60 days of the change of control, each holder of the applicable
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senior notes may require us to repurchase all or a portion of its notes at a price equal to 101% of the principal
amount of the notes repurchased, plus any accrued and unpaid interest to the date of repurchase.
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Gulf Opportunity Zone Revenue Bonds. NuStar Logistics’ obligations also include revenue bonds issued by the
Parish of St. James, Louisiana pursuant to the Gulf Opportunity Zone Act of 2005 (the “GoZone Bonds”).

As reflected in the table below, the holders of the Series 2008, Series 2010B and Series 2011 GoZone Bonds are
required to tender their bonds at the applicable mandatory purchase date in exchange for 100% of the principal
plus accrued and unpaid interest, after which these bonds are expected to be remarketed with a new interest rate
established. Each of the Series 2010 and Series 2010A GoZone Bonds is subject to redemption on or after June 1,
2030 by the Parish of St. James, at our option, in whole or in part, at a redemption price of 100% of the principal
amount to be redeemed plus accrued and unpaid interest. Interest on the GoZone Bonds is payable semi-annually
on June 1 and December 1 of each year.

The following table summarizes the GoZone Bonds outstanding as of June 30, 2024:

Series Date Issued

Amount

Outstanding Interest Rate

Mandatory

Purchase Date

Optional

Redemption Date Maturity Date

Series 2008 June 26, 2008 $ 56  6.10 % June 1, 2030 n/a June 1, 2038

Series 2010 July 15, 2010 100  6.35 % n/a June 1, 2030 July 1, 2040

Series

2010A

October 7, 2010 43  6.35 % n/a June 1, 2030 October 1, 2040

Series

2010B

December 29,

2010

48  6.10 % June 1, 2030 n/a December 1, 2040

Series 2011 August 9, 2011 75  5.85 % June 1, 2025 n/a August 1, 2041

NuStar Logistics’ agreements with the Parish of St. James related to the GoZone Bonds contain: (i) customary
restrictive covenants that limit the ability of NuStar Logistics and its subsidiaries to, among other things, create
liens, enter into certain sale leaseback transactions, and engage in certain consolidations, mergers or asset sales;
and (ii) a repurchase provision which provides that if we undergo a change of control that is followed by a ratings
decline that occurs within 60 days of the change of control, then each holder may require the trustee, with funds
provided by NuStar Logistics, to repurchase all or a portion of that holder’s GoZone Bonds at a price equal to 101%
of the aggregate principal amount repurchased, plus any accrued and unpaid interest.

Credit Facility Facilities

The Partnership's $1.50 billion revolving credit facility (the "Credit Facility" “Credit Facility”) matures in May 2029 (as
amended in May 2024), which date may be extended in accordance with the terms of the Credit Facility. The Credit
Facility can be increased from time to time upon our written request, subject to certain conditions, up to an
additional $500 million. As of March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, the balance
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on the Credit Facility was $625 $85  million, and $5 $15  million standby letters of credit were outstanding. The
unused availability on the Credit Facility at March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 was $870  million. $1.40  billion. The
weighted average interest rate on the total amount outstanding at March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 was7.18%  7.43%.
The Partnership was in compliance with all financial covenants at March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024.

Upon the closing of the NuStar acquisition, the commitments under NuStar’s receivables financing agreement were
reduced to zero during a suspension period, for which the period end has not been determined. As of June 30,
2024, this facility had no outstanding borrowings.

Fair Value of Debt

The aggregate estimated fair value and carrying amount of our consolidated debt obligations as of March 31,
2024 June 30, 2024 were $3.70 $7.35 billion and $3.80 $7.38 billion, respectively. As of December 31, 2023, the
aggregate fair value and carrying amount of our consolidated debt obligations were $3.50 billion and $3.58 billion,
respectively. The fair value of our consolidated debt obligations is a Level 2 valuation based on the respective debt
obligations' observable inputs for similar liabilities.

8. Other Non-Current Liabilities

Other non-current liabilities consisted of the following:

March 31,


2024

December 31,


2023

June 30,

2024

December 31,


2023

Asset retirement obligations

Asset retirement obligations

Asset retirement obligations

Accrued environmental expense, long-term

Other

Total

9. Related Party Transactions

We are party to fee-based commercial agreements with various affiliates of Energy Transfer for pipeline,
terminalling and storage services. We also have agreements with subsidiaries of Energy Transfer for the purchase
and sale of fuel.
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Our investments in the J.C. Nolan joint ventures was $125 venture entities were $124 million and $124 million as of
March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively. In addition, we recorded income on equity in
earnings from the unconsolidated J.C. Nolan joint ventures venture of $2 million and $1 million for each of the three
months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 and 2023. 2023, respectively, and $4 million and $3 million for the six
months ended six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.
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Summary of Transactions

Related party transactions for the three months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 and 2023 were as follows:

Three Months Ended March 31,

Three Months Ended March 31,

Three Months Ended March 31,

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,

2024 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023

Motor fuel sales to affiliates

Bulk fuel purchases from affiliates

Significant affiliate balances included on the consolidated balance sheets were as follows:

• Accounts receivable from affiliates were $26 $33 million and $20 million as of March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024
and December 31, 2023, respectively, which were primarily related to motor fuel sales to affiliates.

• Accounts payable to affiliates were $170 $114 million and $170 million as of March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 and
December 31, 2023, respectively, which were attributable to operational expenses and bulk fuel purchases.

• Advances from affiliates were $98 $94  million and $102  million as of March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 and
December 31, 2023, respectively, which were related to treasury services agreements with Energy Transfer.

10. Revenue

Disaggregation of Revenue

We operate Subsequent to our business in two primary acquisition of NuStar, the Partnership's consolidated
financial statements reflect three reportable segments: Fuel Distribution, Pipeline Systems and
Marketing Terminals.

Revenues from our Fuel Distribution segment are derived from the sale of fuel, non-fuel and All Other. We
disaggregate lease income. Fuel sales consist primarily of the sale of motor fuel under supply agreements with
third-party customers and affiliates. Fuel supply contracts with our customers generally provide that we distribute
motor fuel at a price based on a formula which includes published rates, volume-based profit margin and other
terms specific to the agreement. The customer is invoiced the agreed-upon price with most payment terms ranging
less than 30 days. If the consideration promised in a contract includes a variable amount, the Partnership estimates
the variable consideration amount and factors in such estimate to determine the transaction price under the
expected value method. Revenue is recognized under the motor fuel contracts at the point in time the customer
takes control of the fuel. At the time control is transferred to the customer the sale is considered final, because the
agreements do not grant customers the right to return motor fuel. To determine when control transfers to the
customer, the shipping terms of the contract are assessed as a primary indicator of the transfer of control. For FOB
shipping point terms, revenue within is recognized at the segments by channels. time of shipment. The performance
obligation with respect to the sale of goods is satisfied at the time of shipment since the customer gains control at
this time under the terms. Shipping and/or handling costs that occur before the customer obtains control of the
goods are deemed to be fulfillment activities and are accounted for as fulfillment costs. Once the goods are
shipped, the Partnership is precluded from redirecting the shipment to another customer and revenue is
recognized. Non-fuel revenue includes merchandise revenue that comprises the in-store merchandise and food
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service sales at company-operated retail stores and other revenue such as credit card processing, car washes,
lottery and other services. Lease revenue is derived from leasing arrangements for which we are the lessor and
recognized ratably over the term of the underlying lease.

Revenues from our Pipeline Systems segment are derived from interstate and intrastate pipeline transportation of
refined products, crude oil and anhydrous ammonia and the applicable pipeline tariff on a per barrel basis for crude
oil or refined products and on a per ton basis for ammonia.

Revenues from our Terminals segment include fees for tank storage agreements, under which a customer agrees
to pay for a certain amount of storage in a tank over a period of time (storage terminal revenues) and throughput
agreements, under which a customer pays a fee per barrel for volumes moving through our terminals (throughput
terminal revenues). Our terminals also provide blending, additive injections, handling and filtering services for
which we charge additional fees.
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The following table depicts the disaggregation of revenue by channel within each segment:

Three Months Ended March 31,

2024 2023

Fuel Distribution and Marketing Segment

Distributor $ 2,074  $ 2,303 

Dealer 881  919 

Unbranded wholesale 1,984  1,540 

Commission agent 295  341 

Non-motor fuel sales 40  29 

Lease income 35  34 

Total 5,309  5,166 

All Other Segment

Motor fuel
132  136 

Non-motor fuel sales 55  57 

Lease income 3  3 

Total 190  196 

Total revenue $ 5,499  $ 5,362 

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,

2024 2023 2024 2023

Fuel Distribution
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Fuel $ 5,797  $ 5,595  $ 11,151  $ 10,820 

Non-fuel 81  73  146  137 

Lease income 30  37  68  74 

Pipeline Systems

Throughput 138  —  138  — 

Other 39  —  39  — 

Terminals

Throughput 20  15  36  27 

Other 69  25  95  49 

Total revenues $ 6,174  $ 5,745  $ 11,673  $ 11,107 

Contract Balances with Customers

The balances of the Partnership’s contract assets and contract liabilities as of March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 and
December 31, 2023 were as follows:

March 31,


2024 December 31, 2023

June 30,


2024 December 31, 2023

Contract assets

Contract assets

Contract assets

Accounts receivable from contracts with customers

Contract liabilities

The following table summarizes the consolidated activity of our contract liabilities:
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Contract

Liabilities

Balance, December 31, 2023 $ — 

NuStar acquisition 78 

Zenith European terminals acquisition 3 

Additions 19 

Revenue recognized (19)

Balance, June 30, 2024 $ 81 

Remaining Performance Obligations

The following table presents our estimated revenues from contracts with customers for remaining performance
obligations that have not yet been recognized, representing our contractually committed revenue as of June 30,
2024.

Remaining Performance

Obligations

2024 (remaining) $ 207 

2025 299 

2026 232 

2027 159 

2028 123 

Thereafter 268 

Total $ 1,288 

Table of Contents

Our contractually committed revenue, for purposes of the tabular presentation above, is generally limited to
customer contracts that have fixed pricing and fixed volume terms and conditions, including contracts with payment
obligations for minimum volume commitments.

Costs to Obtain or Fulfill a Contract

The Partnership recognized amortization on capitalized costs incurred to obtain contracts of $8 million $9 million
and $6 million $7 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively, and $17
million and $13 million for the six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

11. Commitments and Contingencies

Litigation
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From time to time, the Partnership is involved in various legal proceedings and claims arising out of our operations
in the normal course of business. Such proceedings are subject to the uncertainties inherent in any litigation, and
we regularly assess the need for accounting recognition or disclosure of any related contingencies. We maintain
liability insurance with insurers with coverage and deductibles management believes are reasonable and prudent.
However, there can be no assurance that the levels of insurance protection currently in effect will continue to be
available at reasonable prices or that such levels will be adequate to protect us from material expenses related to
product liability, personal injury or property damage in the future. Based on currently available information, we
believe it is unlikely that the outcome of known matters would have a material adverse impact on our financial
condition, results of operations or cash flows.

New York Motor Fuel Excise Tax Audits

Lessee Accounting

The details Sunoco LLC and Sunoco Retail LLC are currently under motor fuel excise tax audits in the state of New
York for the Partnership's operating periods of March 2017 through May 2020. These audits are currently ongoing
and finance lease liabilities were as follows:

March 31,

Lease term and discount rate 2024 2023

Weighted average remaining lease term (years)

Operating leases 22 22

Finance leases 27 28

Weighted average discount rate (%)

Operating leases 6 % 5 %

Finance leases 4 % 4 %

Three Months Ended March 31,

Other information 2024 2023

Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabilities

Operating cash flows from operating leases $ (12) $ (12)

Operating cash flows from finance leases —  — 

Financing cash flows from finance leases —  — 

Lease assets obtained in exchange for new finance lease liabilities —  — 

Lease assets obtained in exchange for new operating lease liabilities 1  1 

Maturity of lease liabilities (as of March 31, 2024)

Operating

leases

Finance

leases Total

2024 (remainder) $ 39  $ —  $ 39 

2025 38  —  38 
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2026 37  —  37 

2027 36  —  36 

2028 35  —  35 

Thereafter 576  15  591 

Total lease payments 761  15  776 

Less: interest 307  6  313 

Present value of lease liabilities $ 454  $ 9  $ 463 

no assessments have been made. We cannot predict the outcome of these audits; however, to the
extent material assessments may be issued, we would expect to use all appropriate administrative
and legal measures to defend our positions.

12. Income Tax Expense

As a partnership, we are generally not subject to federal income tax and most state income taxes. However, the
Partnership conducts certain activities through corporate subsidiaries which are subject to federal and state income
taxes.

Our effective tax rate differs from the statutory rate primarily due to Partnership earnings that are not subject to
U.S. federal and most state income taxes at the Partnership level. A reconciliation of income tax expense from
continuing operations at the U.S. federal statutory rate of 21% to net income tax expense is as follows:

Three Months Ended March

31,

Three Months Ended March

31,

Three Months Ended March

31,

Three Months Ended

June 30,

Six Months Ended

June 30,

2024 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023

Income tax expense at United States statutory

rate

Income tax expense at United States statutory

rate

Income tax expense at United States statutory

rate

Increase (reduction) in income taxes

resulting from:

Partnership earnings not subject to tax

Partnership earnings not subject to tax
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Partnership earnings not subject to tax

State and local tax, net of federal expense

State and local tax, net of federal expense

State and local tax, net of federal expense

Other

Other

Other

Net income tax expense

13. Equity

As of March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, Energy Transfer and its subsidiaries owned 28,463,967 of our common units
and the public owned 55,964,142 107,533,995 of our common units. As of March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, our
wholly owned subsidiaries owned all of the 16,410,780 Class C units representing limited partner interests in the
Partnership.

Common Units

The change in our outstanding common units for the three six months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 was as
follows: 

Number of Units

Number of common units at December 31, 2023 84,408,014 

Phantom unit vesting 20,095 46,848 

NuStar acquisition 51,543,100 

Number of common units at March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 84,428,109 135,997,962 

Table of Contents

Cash Distributions

Our partnership agreement sets forth the calculation used to determine the amount and priority of cash distributions
that the common unitholders receive.

Cash distributions paid or declared during 2024 were as follows:

Limited

Partners
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Payment

Date

Payment

Date

Payment

Date
Per Unit

Distribution

Total Cash

Distribution

Distribution to IDR

Holders
Per Unit

Distribution

Total Cash

Distribution

Distribution to IDR

Holders

February 20,

2024

May 20,

2024

August 19,

2024

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

The following table presents the components of AOCI, net of tax:

June 30,


2024

December 31,


2023

Foreign currency translation adjustment $ (1) $ — 

Actuarial gains related to pensions and other postretirement benefits 7  — 

Total accumulated other comprehensive income included in partners’ capital,
net of tax $ 6  $ — 

14. Segment Reporting

Change in Segments

Subsequent to the acquisition of NuStar, management reevaluated the Partnership’s internal reporting, which
resulted in changes to the Partnership’s reportable segments. The Partnership’s consolidated financial information
now includes three reportable segments: Fuel Distribution, Pipeline Systems and Terminals. The Partnership
previously reported reportable segments for Fuel Distribution and Marketing and All Other. The operations within
those prior reportable segments have now been reallocated among the new reportable segments, and prior periods
have been adjusted accordingly to reflect the current segment presentation. In addition, certain operations within
NuStar’s prior standalone reporting have been reallocated based on the post-acquisition internal reporting and
management structure; therefore, segment operating results reported herein are not comparable to those
previously reported by NuStar in its standalone pre-acquisition financial statements.

Description of Segments

Fuel Distribution. Our Fuel Distribution segment supplies motor fuel to independently-operated dealer stations,
distributors, commission agents and other consumers. Also included in our Fuel Distribution segment is lease
income from properties that we lease or sublease, as well as the Partnership’s credit card services, franchise
royalties and retail operations in Hawaii and New Jersey.
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Pipeline Systems. Our Pipeline Systems segment includes the operations of our refined products, crude oil and
anhydrous ammonia pipelines, as well as other assets that are operated and managed on an integrated basis with
our pipeline systems, including certain terminal and storage assets.

Terminals. Our Terminals segment is composed of our facilities (other than those integrated into the Pipeline
Systems segment) that provide storage, handling and other services on a fee basis for refined products, crude oil,
specialty chemicals, renewable fuels and other liquids. The segment also includes the operations of our transmix
processing facilities.

Segment Operating Results

We report Adjusted EBITDA by segment as a measure of segment performance. We define Adjusted EBITDA as
earnings before net interest expense, income tax expense and taxes, depreciation, amortization and accretion
expense, non-cash unit-based compensation expense, gains and losses on disposal of assets, and non-cash
impairment charges,  losses on extinguishment of debt, unrealized gains and losses on commodity derivatives,
inventory valuation adjustments, and certain other operating expenses reflected in net income that we do not
believe are indicative of ongoing core operations. Inventory valuation adjustments that are excluded from the
calculation of Adjusted EBITDA represent changes in lower of cost or market reserves on the Partnership's
inventory. These amounts are unrealized valuation adjustments applied to fuel volumes remaining in inventory at
the end of the period.

Table of Contents

The following table presents tables present financial information by segment for the three and six months ended
March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 and 2023:

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,

2024 2023 2024 2023

Revenues:

Fuel Distribution $ 5,908  $ 5,705  $ 11,365  $ 11,031 

Pipeline Systems 177  —  177  — 

Terminals 89  40  131  76 

Total $ 6,174  $ 5,745  $ 11,673  $ 11,107 

Three Months Ended March 31,

2024 2023

Fuel

Distribution

and Marketing

All

Other

Intercompany

Eliminations Totals

Fuel

Distribution

and Marketing

All

Other

Intercompany

Eliminations Totals

Revenue

Motor fuel sales $ 5,234  $ 132  $ 5,366  $ 5,103  $ 136  $5,239 
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Non-motor fuel sales 40  55  95  29  57  86 

Lease income 35  3  38  34  3  37 

Intersegment sales 95  —  (95) —  98  —  (98) — 

Total revenue $ 5,404  $ 190  $ (95) $ 5,499  $ 5,264  $ 196  $ (98) $5,362 

Net income and comprehensive

income $ 230  $ 141 

Depreciation, amortization and

accretion 43  48 

Interest expense, net 63  53 

Income tax expense 7  7 

Non-cash unit-based

compensation expense 4  5 

Loss on disposal of assets 2  1 

Unrealized (gains) losses on

commodity derivatives 13  (11)

Inventory valuation adjustments (130) (29)

Equity in earnings of

unconsolidated affiliates (2) (2)

Adjusted EBITDA related to

unconsolidated affiliates 3  3 

Other non-cash adjustments 9  5 

Adjusted EBITDA $ 219  $ 23  $ 242  $ 195  $ 26  $ 221 

Capital expenditures $ 28  $ 13  $ 41  $ 24  $ 13  $ 37 

Total assets as of March 31, 2024

and


December 31, 2023, respectively $ 6,399  $ 993  $ 7,392  $ 5,676  $1,150  $6,826 

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,

2024 2023 2024 2023

Segment Adjusted EBITDA:

Fuel Distribution $ 245  $ 226  $ 463  $ 422 

Pipeline Systems 53  3  53  7 

Terminals 22  21  46  42 

Total $ 320  $ 250  $ 562  $ 471 
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Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,

2024 2023 2024 2023

Reconciliation of net income to Adjusted EBITDA:

Net income $ 501  $ 87  $ 731  $ 228 

Depreciation, amortization and accretion 78  49  121  97 

Interest expense, net 95  53  158  106 

Non-cash unit-based compensation expense 4  4  8  9 

Loss (gain) on disposal of assets and impairment

charges 52  (13) 54  (12)

Loss on extinguishment of debt 2  —  2  — 

Unrealized (gains) losses on commodity derivatives (6) 1  7  (10)

Inventory valuation adjustments 32  57  (98) 28 

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates (2) (1) (4) (3)

Adjusted EBITDA related to unconsolidated affiliates 3  3  6  6 

Gain on West Texas Sale (598) —  (598) — 

Other non-cash adjustments 10  1  19  6 

Income tax expense 149  9  156  16 

Adjusted EBITDA (consolidated) $ 320  $ 250  $ 562  $ 471 

June 30,

2024

December 31,

2023

Assets:

Fuel Distribution $ 6,319  $ 6,343 

Pipeline Systems 6,438  49 

Terminals 1,357  398 

Total segment assets 14,114  6,790 

Other partnership assets 351  36 

Total assets $ 14,465  $ 6,826 
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15. Net Income per Common Unit

A reconciliation of the numerators and denominators of the basic and diluted net income per common unit
computations is as follows:

Three Months Ended March 31,

2024 2023

Net income and comprehensive income $ 230  $ 141 

Less:

Incentive distribution rights 36  19 

Distributions on unvested phantom unit awards 1  2 

Common unitholders’ interest in net income $ 193  $ 120 

Weighted average common units outstanding:

Basic 84,424,748  84,058,716 

Dilutive effect of unvested phantom unit awards 834,490  912,110 

Diluted 85,259,238  84,970,826 

Net income per common unit:

Basic $ 2.29  $ 1.43 

Diluted $ 2.26  $ 1.41 

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,

2024 2023 2024 2023

Net income $ 501  $ 87  $ 731  $ 228 

Less:

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests 8  —  8  — 

Incentive distribution rights 36  20  72  39 

Distributions on unvested phantom unit awards 2  1  3  3 

Common unitholders’ interest in net income $ 455  $ 66  $ 648  $ 186 

Weighted average common units outstanding:

Basic 117,271,408  84,060,866  100,848,078  84,059,797 

Dilutive effect of unvested phantom unit awards 783,450  973,402  808,998  938,980 

Diluted 118,054,858  85,034,268  101,657,076  84,998,777 

Net income per common unit:

Basic $ 3.88  $ 0.79  $ 6.43  $ 2.21 

Diluted $ 3.85  $ 0.78  $ 6.37  $ 2.19 
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
(Tabular dollar amounts, except per gallon data, are in millions)

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in
conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and notes to consolidated financial statements included
elsewhere in this report. Additional discussion and analysis related to the Partnership is contained in our Annual
Report on Form 10-K, including the audited consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ended December
31, 2023 included therein.

Adjusted EBITDA is a non-GAAP financial measure of performance that has limitations and should not be
considered as a substitute for net income or other GAAP measures. Please see “Key Measures Used to Evaluate
and Assess Our Business” below for a discussion of our use of Adjusted EBITDA in this “Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and a reconciliation to net income for the periods
presented.

Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

Some of the information in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q may contain forward-looking statements within the
meaning of Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). All statements,
other than statements of historical fact included in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, regarding our strategy,
future operations, financial position, estimated revenues and losses, projected costs, prospects, plans and
objectives of management are forward-looking statements. Statements using words such as “believe,” “plan,”
“expect,” “anticipate,” “intend,” “forecast,” “assume,” “estimate,” “continue,” “position,” “predict,” “project,” “goal,”
“strategy,” “budget,” “potential,” “will” and other similar words or phrases are used to help identify forward-looking
statements, although not all forward-looking statements contain such identifying words. Descriptions of our
objectives, goals, targets, plans, strategies, costs, anticipated capital expenditures, expected cost savings and
benefits are also forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are based on our current plans
and expectations and involve a number of risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results and events to vary
materially from the results and events anticipated or implied by such forward-looking statements, including:

• our ability to make, complete and integrate acquisitions from affiliates or third-parties;

• business strategy and operations of Energy Transfer LP ("Energy Transfer") and its conflicts of interest with us;

• changes in the price of and demand for the motor fuel that we distribute and our ability to appropriately hedge
any motor fuel we hold in inventory;

• our dependence on limited principal suppliers;

• competition in the wholesale motor fuel distribution and retail store industry;

• changing customer preferences for alternate fuel sources or improvement in fuel efficiency;

• volatility of fuel prices or a prolonged period of low fuel prices and the effects of actions by, or disputes among
or between, oil producing countries with respect to matters related to the price or production of oil;

• any acceleration of the domestic and/or international transition to a low carbon economy as a result of the
Inflation Reduction Act of 2022 or otherwise;

• the possibility of cyber and malware attacks;

• changes in our credit rating, as assigned by rating agencies;
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• a deterioration in the credit and/or capital markets, including as a result of recent increases in cost of capital
resulting from Federal Reserve policies and changes in financial institutions’ policies or practices concerning
businesses linked to fossil fuels;

• general economic conditions, including sustained periods of inflation, supply chain disruptions and associated
central bank monetary policies;

• environmental, tax and other federal, state and local laws and regulations;

• the fact that we are not fully insured against all risks incident to our business;

• dangers inherent in the storage and transportation of motor fuel;

• our ability to manage growth and/or control costs;

• our reliance on senior management, supplier trade credit and information technology; and

• our partnership structure, which may create conflicts of interest between us and Sunoco GP LLC (our “General
Partner”), and its affiliates, and limits the fiduciary duties of our General Partner and its affiliates.
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All forward-looking statements, express or implied, are expressly qualified in their entirety by the foregoing
cautionary statements.

Many of the foregoing risks and uncertainties are, and will be, heightened by any further worsening of the global
business and economic environment. New factors that could impact forward-looking statements emerge from time
to time, and it is not possible for us to predict all such factors. Should one or more of the risks or uncertainties
described or referenced in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, or our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2023, filed with the SEC on February 16, 2024  or our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended March 31, 2024 filed with the SEC on May 9, 2024 occur, or should underlying assumptions prove
incorrect, actual results and plans could differ materially from those expressed in any forward-looking statements.

You should not put undue reliance on any forward-looking statements. When considering forward-looking
statements, please review the risks described or referenced under the heading “Item 1A. Risk Factors” herein,
including the risk factors set forth in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023, filed
with the SEC on February 16, 2024 or from the risk factors set forth in our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended March 31, 2024 filed with the SEC on May 9, 2024. The list of factors that could affect future
performance and the accuracy of forward-looking statements is illustrative but by no means exhaustive.
Accordingly, all forward-looking statements should be evaluated with the understanding of their inherent
uncertainty. The forward-looking statements included in this report are based on, and include, our estimates as of
the filing of this report. We anticipate that subsequent events and market developments will cause our estimates to
change. However, we specifically disclaim any obligation to update any forward-looking statements after the date of
this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, except as required by law, even if new information becomes available in the
future.

In addition to risks and uncertainties in the ordinary course of business that are common to all businesses,
important factors that are specific to our structure as a limited partnership, our industry and our company could
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materially impact our future performance and results of operations.

Overview

As used in this Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, the terms
“Partnership,” “we,” “us,” “our” or "SUN" should be understood to refer to Sunoco LP and its consolidated
subsidiaries, unless the context clearly indicates otherwise.

We are a Delaware master limited partnership primarily engaged with operations in over 40 U.S. states, Puerto
Rico, Europe and Mexico. We are the distribution largest independent distributor of motor fuels to fuel in North
America and a leading operator of critical midstream energy infrastructure. Our midstream operations include an
extensive network of approximately 14,000 miles of pipeline and over 100 terminals. This critical infrastructure
complements our fuel distribution operations, which serve approximately 7,400 Sunoco and partner branded
locations and additional independent dealers distributors and other customers and the distribution of motor fuels to
end customers at retail sites operated by commission agents. We also receive rental income through the leasing or
subleasing of real estate used in the retail distribution of motor fuels. As of March 31, 2024, we operated 76 retail
stores located in Hawaii and New Jersey. In addition to distributing motor fuel, we also distribute other petroleum
products such as propane and lubricating oil.

We purchase motor fuel primarily from independent refiners and major oil companies and distribute it across more
than 40 states and territories throughout the United States, including Hawaii and Puerto Rico, to:

• 76company-owned and operated retail stores;

• 473 independently operated commission agent locations where we sell motor fuel to retail customers under
commission agent arrangements with such operators;

• 6,804 retail stores operated by independent operators, which we refer to as “dealers” or “distributors,” pursuant
to long-term distribution agreements; and

• approximately1,700other commercial customers, including unbranded retail stores, other fuel distributors,
school districts, municipalities and other industrial customers.

Recent Developments

Acquisitions

NuStar

On May 3, 2024, we completed the previously announced acquisition of NuStar Energy L.P. (“NuStar”). Under the
terms of the agreement, NuStar common unitholders received 0.400 SUN common units for each NuStar common
unit. In connection with the acquisition, we issued approximately 50.6 51.5 million common units, which had a fair
value of approximately $2.8 $2.9  billion, assumed debt totaling approximately $3.4 $3.5  billion and assumed
preferred units with a fair value of approximately $800 million. NuStar has approximately 9,500 miles of pipeline
and 63 terminal and storage facilities that store and distribute crude oil, refined products, renewable fuels,
ammonia and specialty liquids.

Zenith European Terminals

On March 13, 2024, we completed the previously announced acquisition of liquid fuels terminals in Amsterdam,
Netherlands and Bantry Bay, Ireland from Zenith Energy for €170 million ($185 million), including working capital.
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Divestiture

Divestiture West Texas Sale

On April 16, 2024, we completed the previously announced sale of 204 convenience stores located in West Texas,
New Mexico and Oklahoma to 7-Eleven, Inc. for approximately $1.0 billion, including customary adjustments for
fuel and merchandise inventory. As part of the sale, SUN also amended its existing take-or-pay fuel supply
agreement with 7-Eleven, Inc. to incorporate additional fuel gross profit.
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Other Transactions

Permian Joint Venture

On July 16, 2024, SUN and Energy Transfer announced the formation of a joint venture combining their respective
crude oil and produced water gathering assets in the Permian Basin. Pursuant to the Contribution Agreement by
and among Sunoco LP, SUN Pipeline Holdings LLC, NuStar Permian Transportation and Storage LLC, NuStar
Permian Crude Logistics LLC, NuStar Permian Holdings LLC, NuStar Logistics, L.P., ET-S Permian Holdings
Company LP, ET-S Permian Pipeline Company LLC, ET-S Permian Marketing Company LLC, Energy Transfer LP,
and Energy Transfer Crude Marketing, LLC dated July 14, 2024 in a cashless transaction, SUN contributed all of its
Permian crude oil gathering assets and operations to the joint venture. Additionally, Energy Transfer contributed its
Permian crude oil and produced water gathering assets and operations to the joint venture. Energy Transfer’s long-
haul crude pipeline network that provides transportation of crude oil out of the Permian Basin to Nederland,
Houston, and Cushing is excluded from the joint venture.

The joint venture operates more than 5,000 miles of crude oil and water gathering pipelines with crude oil storage
capacity in excess of 11 million barrels.

SUN holds a 32.5% interest with Energy Transfer holding the remaining 67.5% interest in the joint venture.

The formation of the joint venture was effective on July 1, 2024.

Key Measures Used to Evaluate and Assess Our Business

Management uses a variety of financial measurements to analyze business performance, including the following
key measures:

• Motor fuel gallons sold. One of the primary drivers of our business is the total volume of motor fuel sold through
our channels. Fuel distribution contracts with our customers generally provide that we distribute motor fuel at a
fixed, volume-based profit margin or at an agreed upon level of price support. As a result, profit is directly tied
to the volume of motor fuel that we distribute. Total motor fuel profit dollars earned from the product of profit per
gallon and motor fuel gallons sold are used by management to evaluate business performance.

• Profit per gallon. Profit per gallon is calculated as the profit on motor fuel (excluding non-cash inventory
valuation adjustments as described under "Adjusted EBITDA" below) divided by the number of gallons sold,
and is typically expressed as cents per gallon. Our profit per gallon varies amongst our third-party relationships
and is impacted by the availability of certain discounts and rebates from suppliers. Retail profit per gallon is
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heavily impacted by volatile pricing and intense competition from retail stores, supermarkets, club stores and
other retail formats, which varies based on the market.

• Adjusted EBITDA. Adjusted EBITDA, as used throughout this document, is defined as earnings before net
interest expense, income taxes, depreciation, amortization and accretion expense, allocated non-cash unit-
based compensation expense,  gains and losses on disposal of assets, non-cash impairment charges, losses
on extinguishment of debt, unrealized gains and losses on commodity derivatives, and inventory valuation
adjustments, and certain other operating expenses reflected in net income that we do not believe are indicative
of ongoing core operations, such as gain or loss on disposal of assets and non-cash impairment
charges. operations. Inventory valuation adjustments that are excluded from the calculation of Adjusted
EBITDA represent changes in lower of cost or market reserves on the Partnership's inventory. These amounts
are unrealized valuation adjustments applied to fuel volumes remaining in inventory at the end of the period.

Adjusted EBITDA is a non-GAAP financial measure. For a reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to net income,
which is the most directly comparable financial measure calculated and presented in accordance with GAAP,
read “Key Operating Metrics and Results of Operations” below.

We believe Adjusted EBITDA is useful to investors in evaluating our operating performance because:

• Adjusted EBITDA is used as a performance measure under our Credit Facility;

• securities analysts and other interested parties use Adjusted EBITDA as a measure of financial
performance; and

• our management uses Adjusted EBITDA for internal planning purposes, including aspects of our
consolidated operating budget and capital expenditures.

Adjusted EBITDA is not a recognized term under GAAP and does not purport to be an alternative to net income
as a measure of operating performance. Adjusted EBITDA has limitations as an analytical tool, and one should
not consider it in isolation or as a substitute for analysis of our results as reported under GAAP. Some of these
limitations include:

• it does not reflect interest expense or the cash requirements necessary to service interest or principal
payments on our Credit Facility or senior notes;

• although depreciation and amortization are non-cash charges, the assets being depreciated and amortized
will often have to be replaced in the future, and Adjusted EBITDA does not reflect cash requirements for
such replacements; and

• as not all companies use identical calculations, our presentation of Adjusted EBITDA may not be
comparable to similarly titled measures of other companies.

Adjusted EBITDA reflects amounts for the unconsolidated affiliates based on the same recognition and
measurement methods used to record equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates. Adjusted EBITDA related
to unconsolidated affiliates excludes the same items with respect to the unconsolidated affiliates as those
excluded from the calculation of Adjusted EBITDA, such as interest, taxes, depreciation, depletion,
amortization and other non-cash items. Although these amounts are excluded from Adjusted EBITDA related to
unconsolidated affiliates, such exclusion should not be understood to imply that we have control over the
operations and resulting revenues and expenses of such affiliates. We do not control our unconsolidated
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affiliates; therefore, we do not control the earnings or cash flows of such affiliates. The use of Adjusted EBITDA
or Adjusted EBITDA related to unconsolidated affiliates as an analytical tool should be limited accordingly.
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Results of Operations

The following information is intended to provide investors with a reasonable basis for assessing our
historical operations, but should not serve as the only criteria for predicting our future
performance. Consolidated Results

Three Months Ended March 31, 2024 compared to Three Months Ended March 31, 2023

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, information concerning key measures we rely on to gauge
our operating performance:

Three Months Ended


June 30,

Six Months Ended


June 30,

2024 2023 Change 2024 2023 Change

Segment Adjusted EBITDA:

Fuel Distribution $ 245  $ 226  $ 19  $ 463  $ 422  $ 41 

Pipeline Systems 53  3  50  53  7  46 

Terminals 22  21  1  46  42  4 

Adjusted EBITDA (consolidated) $ 320  $ 250  $ 70  $ 562  $ 471  $ 91 

Three Months Ended March 31,

2024 2023

Fuel

Distribution

and Marketing All Other Total

Fuel

Distribution

and Marketing All Other Total

Revenues:

Motor fuel sales $ 5,234  $ 132  $ 5,366  $ 5,103  $ 136  $ 5,239 

Non-motor fuel sales 40  55  95  29  57  86 

Lease income 35  3  38  34  3  37 

Total revenues $ 5,309  $ 190  $ 5,499  $ 5,166  $ 196  $ 5,362 

Cost of sales:

Motor fuel sales $ 4,865  $ 124  $ 4,989  $ 4,835  $ 125  $ 4,960 

Non-motor fuel sales 7  19  26  4  23  27 

Lease —  —  —  —  —  — 
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Total cost of sales $ 4,872  $ 143  $ 5,015  $ 4,839  $ 148  $ 4,987 

Net income and comprehensive income $ 230  $ 141 

Adjusted EBITDA (1) $ 219  $ 23  $ 242  $ 195  $ 26  $ 221 

Operating data:

Motor fuel gallons sold 2,105  1,930 

Motor fuel profit cents per gallon (2) 11.7 ¢ 12.9 ¢

(1)    We define Adjusted EBITDA, which is a non-GAAP financial measure, as described above under “Key Measures Used to

Evaluate and Assess Our Business.”

(2)    Excludes the impact of inventory valuation adjustments consistent with the definition of Adjusted EBITDA.

The Partnership’s results of operations are discussed on a consolidated basis below. Those results are primarily
driven by the fuel distribution and marketing segment, which is the Partnership’s only significant segment. To the
extent that results of operations are significantly impacted by discrete items or activities within the all other
segment, such impacts are specifically attributed to the all other segment in the discussion and analysis below.

In the discussion below, the analysis of the Partnership’s primary revenue generating activities are discussed in the
analysis of Adjusted EBITDA, and other significant items impacting net income are analyzed separately.

The following table presents a reconciliation of net income to Adjusted EBITDA for the three months ended March
31, 2024 and 2023:

Three Months Ended March

31,

2024 2023 Change

Net income and comprehensive income $ 230  $ 141  $ 89 

Depreciation, amortization and accretion 43  48  (5)

Interest expense, net 63  53  10 

Non-cash unit-based compensation expense 4  5  (1)

Loss on disposal of assets 2  1  1 

Unrealized (gains) losses on commodity derivatives 13  (11) 24 

Inventory valuation adjustments (130) (29) (101)

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates (2) (2) — 

Adjusted EBITDA related to unconsolidated affiliates 3  3  — 

Other non-cash adjustments 9  5  4 

Income tax expense 7  7  — 

Adjusted EBITDA $ 242  $ 221  $ 21 
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The following discussion compares the results of operations for the three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023.

Three Months Ended

June 30,

Six Months Ended

June 30,

2024 2023 Change 2024 2023 Change

Reconciliation of net income to
Adjusted EBITDA:

Net income $ 501  $ 87  $ 414  $ 731  $ 228  $ 503 

Depreciation, amortization and
accretion 78  49  29  121  97  24 

Interest expense, net 95  53  42  158  106  52 

Non-cash unit-based compensation
expense 4  4  —  8  9  (1)

Loss (gain) on disposal of assets and
impairment charges 52  (13) 65  54  (12) 66 

Loss on extinguishment of debt 2  —  2  2  —  2 

Unrealized (gains) losses on
commodity derivatives (6) 1  (7) 7  (10) 17 

Inventory valuation adjustments 32  57  (25) (98) 28  (126)

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated
affiliates (2) (1) (1) (4) (3) (1)

Adjusted EBITDA related to
unconsolidated affiliates 3  3  —  6  6  — 

Gain on West Texas Sale (598) —  (598) (598) —  (598)

Other non-cash adjustments 10  1  9  19  6  13 

Income tax expense 149  9  140  156  16  140 

Adjusted EBITDA (consolidated) $ 320  $ 250  $ 70  $ 562  $ 471  $ 91 

Net Income and Comprehensive Income. For the three and six months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024
compared to the same period periods last year, net income and comprehensive income increased primarily due to
favorable inventory valuation adjustments a $598 million gain on the West Texas Sale in the current period, April
2024, as discussed further below. In addition, the increase in net income reflected increases of $9  million and
$107 million, respectively, in operating income, driven by results from our reportable segments, partially offset by
increases in depreciation, amortization and accretion, as well as losses on disposal of asset and impairment
charges. The increases in net income were also offset by increases in interest expense and income tax expense.
These changes are discussed in more detail below.

Adjusted EBITDA (consolidated). For the three and six months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 compared
to the same period periods last year, Adjusted EBITDA increased primarily due to increases in profit of $251 million
and $360 million, respectively, primarily related to the net impact acquisitions of NuStar and Zenith European
terminals, partially offset by increases in operating costs (including operating expenses, general and administrative
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expenses and lease expense) of $148 million and $163 million, respectively, primarily related to the
following: acquisitions of NuStar and Zenith European terminals.

Additional discussion on the changes impacting net income and comprehensive income and Adjusted EBITDA for
the three and six months ended June 30, 2024 compared to the same periods last year is available below and in
“Segment Operating Results.”

• Depreciation, Depletion and Amortization. an increase in For the profit on motor fuel sales of $25 million three
and six months ended June 30, 2024 compared to the same periods last year, depreciation, depletion and
amortization increased primarily due to a 9% increase additional depreciation and amortization from assets recently
placed in gallons sold, partially offset by a decrease in profit per gallon; service and

• an increase in non-motor fuel sales and lease profit of $11 million primarily due to increased throughput and
storage margin from recent acquisitions and increased rental income; partially offset by

• an increase in operating costs of $15 million, including other operating expense, general and administrative
expense and lease expense, primarily due to recent acquisitions of refined product terminals and the transmix
processing and terminal facility. acquisitions.

Interest Expense, net. For the three months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 compared to the same period
last year, interest expense increased primarily due to an increase in average total long-term debt as well as higher
interest rates debt.

Table of Contents

Loss (Gain) on floating rate debt. Disposal of Assets and Impairment Charges. For the three and six months
ended June 30, 2024 compared to the same periods last year, loss on disposal of assets and impairment charges
primarily relates to the termination of a lease in June 2024.

Unrealized (Gains) Losses on Commodity Derivatives. The unrealized gains and losses on our commodity
derivatives represent the changes in fair value of our commodity derivatives. The change in unrealized gains and
losses between periods is impacted by the notional amounts and commodity price changes on our commodity
derivatives. Additional information on commodity derivatives is included in “Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative
Disclosures about Market Risk” below.

Inventory Valuation Adjustments. Inventory valuation adjustments represent changes in lower of cost or market
reserves using the last-in, first-out method on the Partnership’s inventory. These amounts are unrealized valuation
adjustments applied to fuel volumes remaining in inventory at the end of the period. For the three months ended
March 31, 2024, June 30, 2024 and March 31, 2023, increases in fuel prices caused 2023, the lower Partnership's
cost of cost or market reserve requirements to decrease by $130 sales included unfavorable inventory valuation
adjustments of $32  million and $29 $57  million, respectively, which decreased net income. For the six months
ended June 30, 2024, the Partnership's cost of sales included favorable inventory valuation adjustments of
$98 million, which increased net income; and for the six months ended June 30, 2023, the Partnership's cost of
sales included unfavorable inventory adjustments of $28 million, which decreased net income.
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Gain on West Texas Sale.The gain on West Texas Sale relates to the gain recognized by SUN upon completion of
the sale of convenience stores to 7-Eleven Inc. in April 2024.

Income Tax Expense.For the three and six months ended June 30, 2024 compared to the same periods last year,
income tax expense increased primarily due to the taxable gain recognized by a corporate subsidiary on the West
Texas Sale.

Segment Operating Results

We evaluate segment performance based on Segment Adjusted EBITDA, which we believe is an important
performance measure of the core profitability of our operations. This measure represents the basis of our internal
financial reporting and is one of the performance measures used by senior management in deciding how to
allocate capital resources among business segments.

The following tables identify the components of Segment Adjusted EBITDA, which is calculated as follows:

• Segment profit, operating expenses and selling, general and administrative expenses. These amounts
represent the amounts included in our consolidated financial statements that are attributable to each segment.

• Adjusted EBITDA related to unconsolidated affiliates. Adjusted EBITDA related to unconsolidated affiliates
excludes the same items with respect to the unconsolidated affiliate as those excluded from the calculation of
Segment Adjusted EBITDA, such as interest, taxes, depreciation, depletion, amortization and other non-cash
items. Although these amounts are excluded from Adjusted EBITDA related to unconsolidated affiliates, such
exclusion should not be understood to imply that we have control over the operations and resulting revenues
and expenses of such affiliates. We do not control our unconsolidated affiliates; therefore, we do not control the
earnings or cash flows of such affiliates.

The following analysis of segment operating results includes a measure of segment profit. Segment profit is a non-
GAAP financial measure and is presented herein to assist in the analysis of segment operating results and
particularly to facilitate an understanding of the impacts that changes in sales revenues have on the segment
performance measure of Segment Adjusted EBITDA. Segment profit is similar to the GAAP measure of gross
profit, except that segment profit excludes charges for depreciation, depletion and amortization. Among the GAAP
measures reported by the Partnership, the most directly comparable measure to segment profit is Segment
Adjusted EBITDA; a reconciliation of segment profit to Segment Adjusted EBITDA is included in the following
tables for each segment where segment profit is presented.

In addition, for the Fuel Distribution segment, the following sections include information on the components of
segment profit by sales type, which components are included in order to provide additional disaggregated
information to facilitate the analysis of segment profit and Segment Adjusted EBITDA. These components of
segment profit are calculated consistent with the calculation of segment profit; therefore, these components also
exclude charges for depreciation, depletion and amortization.
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Three Months Ended


June 30,

Six Months Ended


June 30,

2024 2023 Change 2024 2023 Change

Motor fuel gallons sold 2,189  2,080  109  4,289  4,004  285 

Motor fuel profit cents per gallon 11.8 ¢ 11.9 ¢ (0.1)¢ 11.4 ¢ 12.0 ¢ (0.6)¢

Fuel profit $ 230  $ 198  $ 32  $ 574  $ 462  $ 112 

Non-fuel profit 44  39  5  79  73  6 

Lease profit 30  37  (7) 68  74  (6)

Fuel Distribution segment profit(1) $ 304  $ 274  $ 30  $ 721  $ 609  $ 112 

Expenses $ 96  $ 111  $ (15) $ 207  $ 216  $ (9)

Segment Adjusted EBITDA $ 245  $ 226  $ 19  $ 463  $ 422  $ 41 

(1) For the three months ended June 30, 2024, Fuel Distribution segment profit reconciles to Segment Adjusted
EBITDA by subtracting expenses of $96 million, and unrealized gains on commodity derivatives of $6 million
and adding non-cash unit-based compensation of $4 million, inventory valuation adjustments of $30 million and
other of $9 million. For the three months ended June 30, 2023, Fuel Distribution segment profit reconciles to
Segment Adjusted EBITDA by subtracting expenses of $111  million, and adding non-cash unit-based
compensation of $4 million, unrealized losses on commodity derivatives of $1  million, inventory valuation
adjustments of $51 million, and other of $7 million. For the six months ended June 30, 2024, Fuel Distribution
segment profit reconciles to Segment Adjusted EBITDA by subtracting expenses of $207 million and inventory
valuation adjustments of $85 million and adding non-cash unit-based compensation of $8 million, unrealized
losses on commodity derivatives of $7  million and other of $19  million. For the six months ended June 30,
2023, Fuel Distribution segment profit reconciles to Segment Adjusted EBITDA by subtracting expenses of
$216  million and unrealized gains on commodity derivatives of $10  million and adding non-cash unit-based
compensation of $9 million, inventory valuation adjustments of $19 million and other of $11 million.

Volumes. For the three and six months ended June 30, 2024 compared to the same periods last year, volumes
increased primarily due to growth from investments and profit optimization strategies.

Segment Adjusted EBITDA. For the three months ended June 30, 2024 compared to the same period last year,
Segment Adjusted EBITDA related to our Fuel Distribution segment increased due to the net impact of the
following:

• an increase of $11 million related to a 5% increase in gallons sold, partially offset by a decrease in profit per
gallon primarily as a result of the West Texas Sale; and

• a decrease of $15 million in expenses primarily due to the West Texas Sale in April 2024 and lower allocated
overhead; partially offset by

• a decrease of $7 million in lease profit due to the West Texas Sale in April 2024.

Segment Adjusted EBITDA. For the six months ended June 30, 2024 compared to the same period last year,
Segment Adjusted EBITDA related to our Fuel Distribution segment increased due to the net impact of the
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following:

• an increase of $33 million related to a 7% increase in gallons sold, partially offset by a decrease in profit per
gallon primarily as a result of the West Texas Sale; and

• a decrease of $9 million in expenses primarily due to the West Texas sale in April 2024 and lower allocated
overhead; partially offset by

• a decrease of $6 million in lease profit due to the West Texas Sale in April 2024.
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Pipeline Systems

Three Months Ended


June 30,

Six Months Ended


June 30,

2024 2023 Change 2024 2023 Change

Pipelines throughput (barrels per day) 1,264  —  1,264  632  —  632 

Pipeline Systems segment profit(1) $ 172  $ 1  $ 171  $ 173  $ 2  $ 171 

Expenses $ 121  $ 1  $ 120  $ 124  $ 2  $ 122 

Segment Adjusted EBITDA $ 53  $ 3  $ 50  $ 53  $ 7  $ 46 

(1) For the three months ended June 30, 2024, Pipeline Systems segment profit reconciles to Segment Adjusted
EBITDA by subtracting expenses of $121 million and other of $1 million and adding Adjusted EBITDA related
to unconsolidated affiliates of $3 million. For the three months ended June 30, 2023, Pipeline Systems
segment profit reconciles to Segment Adjusted EBITDA by subtracting expenses of $1 million and adding
Adjusted EBITDA related to unconsolidated affiliates of $3 million. For the six months ended June 30, 2024,
Pipeline Systems segment profit reconciles to Segment Adjusted EBITDA by subtracting expenses of $124
million and other of $2 million and adding Adjusted EBITDA related to unconsolidated affiliates of $6 million.
For the six months ended June 30, 2023, Pipeline Systems segment profit reconciles to Segment Adjusted
EBITDA by subtracting expenses of $2 million and adding Adjusted EBITDA related to unconsolidated affiliates
of $6 million and other of $1 million.

Volumes. For the three and six months ended June 30, 2024 compared to the same periods last year, volumes
increased due to recently acquired assets.

Segment Adjusted EBITDA. For the three and six months ended June 30, 2024 compared to the same periods last
year, Segment Adjusted EBITDA related to our Pipeline Systems segment increased due to the acquisition of
NuStar.

Terminals

Three Months Ended


June 30,

Six Months Ended

June 30,
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2024 2023 Change 2024 2023 Change

Throughput (barrels per day) 638  409  229  531  382  149 

Terminals segment profit(1) $ 89  $ 39  $ 50  $ 155  $ 78  $ 77 

Expenses $ 68  $ 25  $ 43  $ 96  $ 46  $ 50 

Segment Adjusted EBITDA $ 22  $ 21  $ 1  $ 46  $ 42  $ 4 

(1) For the three months ended June 30, 2024, Terminals segment profit reconciles to Segment Adjusted EBITDA
by subtracting expenses of $68 million and other of $1 million and adding inventory valuation adjustments of
$2  million. For the three months ended June 30, 2023, Terminals segment profit reconciles to Segment
Adjusted EBITDA by subtracting expenses of $25  million and adding inventory valuation adjustments of
$6 million and other of $1 million. For the six months ended June 30, 2024, Terminals segment profit reconciles
to Segment Adjusted EBITDA by subtracting expenses of $96 million and inventory valuation adjustments of
$13 million. For the six months ended June 30, 2023, Terminals segment profit reconciles to Segment Adjusted
EBITDA by subtracting expenses of $46 million and adding inventory valuation adjustments of $9 million and
other of $1 million.

Volumes. For the three and six months ended June 30, 2024 compared to the same periods last year, volumes
increased due to recently acquired assets.

Segment Adjusted EBITDA. For the three and six months ended June 30, 2024 compared to the same periods last
year, Segment Adjusted EBITDA related to our Terminals segment increased primarily due to the recent
acquisitions of NuStar, Zenith European terminals and Zenith Energy terminals located across the East Coast and
Midwest.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity

Our principal liquidity requirements are to finance current operations, to fund capital expenditures, including
acquisitions from time to time, to service our debt and to make distributions. We expect our ongoing sources of
liquidity to include cash generated from operations, borrowings under our Credit Facility and the issuance of
additional long-term debt or partnership units as appropriate given market conditions. We expect that these sources
of funds will be adequate to provide for our short-term and long-term liquidity needs.
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Our ability to meet our debt service obligations and other capital requirements, including capital expenditures and
acquisitions, will depend on our future operating performance which, in turn, will be subject to general economic,
financial, business, competitive, legislative, regulatory and other conditions, many of which are beyond our control.
As a normal part of our business, depending on market conditions, we will from time to time consider opportunities
to repay, redeem, repurchase or refinance our indebtedness. Changes in our operating plans, lower than
anticipated sales, increased expenses, acquisitions or other events may cause us to seek additional debt or equity
financing in future periods. There can be no guarantee that financing will be available on acceptable terms or at all.
Debt financing, if available, could impose additional cash payment obligations and additional covenants and
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operating restrictions. In addition, any of the risks described or referenced under the heading “Item 1A. Risk
Factors” herein, including the risk factors set forth in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2023 may also significantly impact our liquidity.

As of March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, we had $215 $226  million of cash and cash equivalents on hand and
borrowing capacity of $870 million $1.40 billion on our Credit Facility. The Partnership was in compliance with all
financial covenants at March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024. Based on our current estimates, we expect to utilize capacity
under the Credit Facility, along with cash from operations, to fund our announced growth capital expenditures and
working capital needs for 2024; however, we may issue debt or equity securities prior to that time as we deem
prudent to provide liquidity for new capital projects or other partnership purposes.

Cash Flows

Our cash flows may change in the future due to a number of factors, some of which we cannot control. These
factors include regulatory changes, the price of products and services, the demand for such products and services,
margin requirements resulting from significant changes in commodity prices, operational risks, the successful
integration of our acquisitions and other factors.

Operating Activities

Changes in cash flows from operating activities between periods primarily result from changes in earnings,
excluding the impacts of non-cash items and changes in operating assets and liabilities (net of effects of
acquisitions). Non-cash items include recurring non-cash expenses, such as depreciation, amortization and
accretion expense and non-cash unit-based compensation expense. Cash flows from operating activities also differ
from earnings as a result of non-cash charges that may not be recurring, such as impairment charges. Our daily
working capital requirements fluctuate within each month, primarily in response to the timing of payments for motor
fuels, motor fuels tax and rent.

Three Six months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 compared to three six months ended March 31,
2023 June 30, 2023. Net cash provided by operating activities during 2024 was $286 $216  million compared to
$326 $417 million for 2023. The decrease in cash flows provided by operations was primarily due to the gain on
West Texas Sale of $598  million and a decrease in net cash flow from operating assets and liabilities of
$30 $6 million.

Investing Activities

Cash flows from investing activities primarily consist of capital expenditures, cash contributions to unconsolidated
affiliates, cash amounts paid for acquisitions and cash proceeds from the sale or disposal of assets. Changes in
capital expenditures between periods primarily result from increases or decreases in our growth capital
expenditures to fund our construction and expansion projects.

Three Six months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 compared to three six months ended March 31,
2023 June 30, 2023. Net cash provided by investing activities during 2024 was $727 million compared to net cash
used in investing activities during 2024 was $223  million compared to $31 of $170  million for 2023. Capital
expenditures for 2024 were $41 $111 million compared to $37 $87 million for 2023. In 2024, we paid $185 million in
cash for the acquisition of liquid fuels terminals from Zenith Energy, including working capital, and received
$27  million in cash from the NuStar acquisition. In 2023, we paid $111  million in cash for the acquisition of 16
refined product terminals from Zenith Energy, including working capital. Distributions from unconsolidated affiliates
in excess of cumulative earnings were $1 $4 million and $3 $5 million for 2024 and 2023, respectively. Proceeds
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from disposal of property and equipment were $2  million and $3 $21  million for 2024 and 2023, respectively.
Additionally, we received $990 million in cash proceeds from the West Texas Sale.

Financing Activities

Changes in cash flows from financing activities between periods primarily result from changes in the levels of
borrowings and equity issuances, which are primarily used to fund our acquisitions and growth capital
expenditures. Distributions increase between the periods based on increases in the number of common units
outstanding or increases in the distribution rate.

Three Six months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 compared to three six months ended March 31,
2023 June 30, 2023. Net cash provided by financing activities during 2024 was $123 million, and net cash used in
financing activities during was $746 million and $90 million for 2024 and 2023, was $188 million. respectively.

During the three six months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, we:

• borrowed $889 million $1.50 billion and repaid $675 $405 million in Senior Notes;

• borrowed $1.24 billion and repaid $2.02 billion under the Credit Facility;
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• paid $19 million in loan origination costs;

• redeemed $784 million of preferred units;

• paid $249 million in distributions to our unitholders, of which $104 million was paid to Energy Transfer; and

• paid $8 million in distributions to noncontrolling interests.

During the six months ended June 30, 2023, we:

• borrowed $1.56 billion and repaid $1.47 billion under the Credit Facility; and

• paid $91 $180 million in distributions to our unitholders, of which $43 $85 million was paid to Energy Transfer.

During the three months ended March 31, 2023, we:

• borrowed $759 million and repaid $859 million under the Credit Facility; and

• paid $88 million in distributions to our unitholders, of which $43 million was paid to Energy Transfer.

We intend to pay cash distributions to the holders of our common units and Class C units representing limited
partner interests in the Partnership on a quarterly basis, to the extent we have sufficient cash from our operations
after establishment of cash reserves and payment of fees and expenses, including payments to our General
Partner and its affiliates. Class C unitholders receive distributions at a fixed rate equal to $0.8682 per quarter for
each Class C unit outstanding. There is no guarantee that we will pay a distribution on our units. In May July 2024,
we declared a quarterly distribution of $0.8756 per common unit, which will result in the payment of approximately
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$119 million to common unitholders and $36 million to the IDR holders. The declared distribution will be paid on
May 20, 2024 August 19, 2024 to unitholders of record on May 13, 2024 August 9, 2024.

Capital Expenditures

The following is a summary of capital expenditures on an accrual basis for the six months ended June 30, 2024:

For the three six months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, total capital expenditures were $41 $119  million,
which included $27 $79 million for growth capital and $14 $40 million for maintenance capital.

We currently expect to spend approximately $120  million in maintenance capital expenditures and at least
$300 million in growth capital for the full year 2024.

Description of Indebtedness

As of the dates set forth below, our outstanding consolidated indebtedness was as follows:

March 31,


2024

December 31,


2023

June 30,

2024

December 31,


2023

Credit Facility

Credit Facility

Credit Facility

5.750% Senior Notes due 2025 (1)

6.000% Senior Notes due 2026 (1)

6.000% Senior Notes due 2027

5.625% Senior Notes due 2027 (1)

5.875% Senior Notes due 2028

7.000% Senior Notes due 2028

4.500% Senior Notes due 2029

7.000% Senior Notes due 2029

4.500% Senior Notes due 2030

6.375% Senor Notes due 2030 (1)

7.250% Senior Notes due 2032

GoZone Bonds (1)

Lease-related financing obligations

Total long-term debt

Less: debt issuance costs

Less: debt issuance costs

Less: debt issuance costs

Long-term debt, net
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Lease-related financing obligations

Lease-related financing obligations

Net unamortized premiums, discounts and fair value adjustments

Deferred debt issuance costs

Total debt

Less: current maturities

Total long-term debt, net

(1) These notes, totaling $2.57 billion aggregate principal amount, were assumed by the Partnership in connection
with the closing of the NuStar acquisition in May 2024.

April 2024 Notes Offering

On April 30, 2024, the Partnership issued $750  million of 7.000% senior notes Senior Notes due 2029 and
$750  million of 7.250% senior notes Senior Notes due 2032 in a private offering. The Partnership used the net
proceeds from the offering to (i) repay certain outstanding
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indebtedness of NuStar, in connection with the merger between the Partnership and NuStar, (ii) fund the
redemption of NuStar's preferred units in connection with the merger and (iii) pay offering fees and expenses.

NuStar Acquisition

During the second quarter of 2024, subsequent to the closing of the NuStar acquisition, the Partnership redeemed
NuStar's subordinated notes totaling $403  million and repaid and terminated NuStar's credit facility totaling
$455 million.

Credit Facility

As of March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, the balance on the Credit Facility was $625 $85 million, and $5 $15  million
standby letters of credit were outstanding. The unused availability on the Credit Facility at March 31, 2024 June 30,
2024 was $870 million. $1.40 billion. The weighted average interest rate on the total amount outstanding at March
31, 2024 June 30, 2024 was 7.18% 7.43%. The Partnership was in compliance with all financial covenants at March
31, 2024 June 30, 2024.

On May 3, 2024, the Partnership amended its credit facility, extending the maturity to May 2029.

Guarantor Summarized Financial Information

The senior notes issued by NuStar Logistics are fully and unconditionally guaranteed by Sunoco LP, Sunoco
Finance Corp. and certain of its subsidiaries; the senior notes issued by Sunoco LP and Sunoco Finance Corp. are
fully and unconditionally guaranteed by NuStar Logistics and certain other subsidiaries. Each guarantee of the
senior notes (i) ranks equally in right of payment with all other existing and future unsecured senior indebtedness of
that guarantor, (ii) is structurally subordinated to all existing and any future indebtedness and obligations of any
subsidiaries of that guarantor that do not guarantee the notes and (iii) ranks senior to its guarantee of our

https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us


REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com |
Contact Us
©2024 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including
by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written
consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are
registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies.

56/81

subordinated indebtedness. See Note 7 of the Notes to Financial Statements in Item 1. “Financial Statements” for a
discussion of certain of our debt obligations.

The following tables present summarized combined balance sheet and income statement information for Sunoco
LP, Sunoco Finance Corp. and NuStar Logistics (the “Issuers”), as well as each of the subsidiaries that guarantees
the senior notes issued by those three entities (collectively with the Issuers, the “Guarantor Issuer Group”).
Intercompany items among the Guarantor Issuer Group have been eliminated in the summarized combined
financial information below, as well as intercompany balances and activity for the Guarantor Issuer Group with non-
guarantor subsidiaries, including the Guarantor Issuer Group’s investment balances in non-guarantor subsidiaries.
Comparative period information is not included in the tables below, as such information was not required for the
prior period. Income statement information included below in the table and related disclosure includes the NuStar
subsidiaries for May 3, 2024 (the acquisition date) through June 30, 2024 only.

Summarized Combined Balance Sheet Information for the Guarantor Issuer Group: June 30, 2024

Current assets (a) $ 2,129 

Non-current assets 11,207 

Current liabilities 1,876 

Non-current liabilities, including long-term debt 8,069 

(a) Excludes $153 million of net intercompany receivable due to the non-guarantor subsidiaries from the Guarantor
Issuer Group.

Long-term assets for the non-guarantor subsidiaries totaled $814 million as of June 30, 2024.

Summarized Combined Income Statement Information for the Guarantor Issuer Group:

Six Months Ended

June 30, 2024

Revenues $ 11,338 

Operating income 424 

Net income 718 

Revenues and net income for the non-guarantor subsidiaries totaled $335 million and $5 million, respectively, for
the six months ended June 30, 2024.

Critical Accounting Estimates

The Partnership's critical accounting estimates are described in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2023, filed with the SEC on February 16, 2024. No significant changes have occurred
subsequent to the Form 10-K filing.
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Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Interest Rate Risk
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We are subject to market risk from exposure to changes in interest rates based on our financing, investing and
cash management activities. We had $625 $85 million of outstanding borrowings on the Credit Facility as of March
31, 2024 June 30, 2024. The annualized effect of a one percentage point change in floating interest rates on our
variable rate debt obligations outstanding at March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 would be a $6.3 an approximately
$1 million change to interest expense. Our primary exposure relates to:

• interest rate risk on short-term borrowings; and

• the impact of interest rate movements on our ability to obtain adequate financing to fund future acquisitions.

While we cannot predict or manage our ability to refinance existing debt or the impact interest rate movements will
have on our existing debt, management evaluates our financial position on an ongoing basis. From time to time, we
may enter into interest rate swaps to reduce the impact of changes in interest rates on our floating rate debt. We
had no interest rate swaps in effect during the first three six months of 2024 or 2023.

Commodity Price Risk

Our subsidiaries hold working inventories of refined petroleum products, renewable fuels, gasoline blendstocks and
transmix in storage. As of March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, we held approximately $900 $944  million of such
inventory. While in storage, volatility in the market price of stored motor fuel could adversely impact the price at
which we can later sell the motor fuel. However, we may use futures, forwards and other derivative instruments
(collectively, "positions") to hedge a variety of price risks relating to deviations in that inventory from a target base
operating level established by management. Derivative instruments utilized consist primarily of exchange-traded
futures contracts traded on the New York Mercantile Exchange, Chicago Mercantile Exchange and Intercontinental
Exchange as well as over-the-counter transactions (including swap agreements) entered into with established
financial institutions and other credit-approved energy companies. Our policy is generally to purchase only products
for which there is a market and to structure sales contracts so that price fluctuations do not materially affect profit.
While these derivative instruments represent economic hedges, they are not designated as hedges for accounting
purposes. We may also engage in controlled trading in accordance with specific parameters set forth in a written
risk management policy.

On a consolidated basis, the Partnership had a position of 0.3 0.1  million barrels with an aggregate unrealized
loss gain of $4.8 $1.8 million at March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024.
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Item 4. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As required by paragraph (b) of Rule 13a-15 under the Exchange Act, our management, with the participation of
our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls
and procedures (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act) as of the end
of the period covered by this report. Based on such evaluation, our management, including our Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has concluded, as of the end of the period covered by this report, that our
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disclosure controls and procedures were effective at the reasonable assurance level for which they were designed
in that the information required to be disclosed by the Partnership in the reports we file or submit under the
Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities
and Exchange Commission ("SEC") rules and forms and such information is accumulated and communicated to
our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely
decisions regarding required disclosure.

There Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We closed the acquisition of NuStar Energy L.P. on May 3, 2024 and are currently integrating its operations and
internal control structure. Certain of NuStar’s internal controls over financial reporting, including disclosure controls
and corporate governance procedures, have already been impacted by changes made to conform to the existing
controls and procedures of Sunoco LP. None of the changes resulting from the NuStar acquisition and integration
were in response to an identified deficiency or material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting.

Other than the changes resulting from the NuStar acquisition and integrations, there have been no changes in our
internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13(a)-15(f) or Rule 15d-15(f) of the Exchange Act)
during the three months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, that have materially affected, or are reasonably
likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II – OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

Although we may, from time to time, be involved in litigation and claims arising out of our operations in the normal
course of business, we do not believe that we are party to any litigation that will have a material adverse impact or
other legal proceedings required to be reported herein.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

The Partnership’s acquisitions of NuStar and There have been no material changes form the Zenith terminals in
May 2024 and March 2024, respectively, present several risks. Certain risks associated with these recently
acquired businesses are described below, to the extent those risks represent new risks related to our business or
existing risks that have become more significant. In some cases, certain elements of the risks described below are
similar to the risks associated with our existing business that have recently been disclosed; however, such
disclosure is repeated herein to fully describe the relevant risk.

The following risk factors should be read in conjunction with our risk factors described in “Part I — Item 1A. Risk
Factors” of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023.

Extended periods of reduced demand for or supply of crude oil, refined products, renewable fuels  filed
with the SEC on February 16, 2024 and anhydrous ammonia could have an adverse impact on our results
of operations, cash flows and ability to make distributions to our unitholders.

A significant portion in "Part II - Item 1A. Risk Factors" of our business is ultimately dependent upon the demand for
and supply of the crude oil, refined products, renewable fuels and anhydrous ammonia we transport in our
pipelines and store in our terminals. Market prices for these products are subject to wide fluctuation in response to
changes in global and regional supply and demand that are beyond our control. Increases in the price of crude oil
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may result in a lower demand for refined products that we transport, store and market, including fuel oil, while
sustained low prices may lead to reduced production in the markets served by our pipelines and storage terminals.

Any sustained decrease in demand for crude oil, refined products, renewable fuels or anhydrous ammonia in the
markets our pipelines and terminals serve that extends beyond the expiration of our existing throughput and
deficiency agreements could result in a significant reduction in throughputs in our pipelines and storage in our
terminals, which would reduce our cash flows and impair our ability to make distributions to our unitholders. Factors
that tend to decrease market demand include:

•     a recession, high interest rates, inflation or other adverse economic conditions that result in lower spending by
consumers Quarterly Report on gasoline, diesel and travel;

•     events that negatively impact global economic activity, travel and demand generally;

•         higher fuel taxes or other governmental or regulatory actions that increase, directly or indirectly, the cost of
gasoline;

•     an increase in aggregate automotive engine fuel economy;

•     new government and regulatory actions or court decisions requiring the phase out or reduced use of gasoline-
fueled vehicles;

•    the increased use of and public demand for use of alternative fuel sources or electric vehicles;

•     an increase in the market price of crude oil that increases refined product prices, which may reduce demand for
refined products and increase demand for alternative products; and

•     adverse weather events resulting in decreased corn acres planted, which may reduce demand for anhydrous
ammonia.

Similarly, any sustained decrease in the supply of crude oil, refined products, renewable fuels or anhydrous
ammonia in markets we serve could result in a significant reduction in throughputs in our pipelines and storage
in our terminals, which would reduce our cash flows and undermine our ability to make distributions to our
unitholders. Factors that tend to decrease supply and, by extension, utilization of our pipelines and terminals
include:

•         prolonged periods of low prices for crude oil and refined products that result in decreased exploration and
development activity and reduced production in markets served by our pipelines and storage terminals;

•     macroeconomic forces affecting, or actions taken by, oil and gas producing nations that impact the supply of
and prices for crude oil and refined products;

•     a lack of drilling services, equipment or skilled personnel available to producers to accommodate production
needs;

•         changes in laws, regulations, sanctions or taxation that directly or indirectly delay supply or production or
increase the cost of production of refined products; and

•     political unrest or hostilities, activist interference and the resulting governmental response thereto.
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Failure to retain or replace current customers and renew existing contracts on comparable terms to
maintain utilization of our pipeline and storage assets at current or more favorable rates could reduce our
revenue and cash flows to levels that could adversely affect our ability to make quarterly distributions to
our unitholders.

A significant portion of our revenue and cash flows are generated from our customers’ payments of fees under
throughput contracts and storage agreements. Failure to renew existing contracts or enter into new contracts on
acceptable terms or a material reduction in utilization under existing contracts could result from many factors,
including:

•     sustained low crude oil prices;

•    a material decrease in the supply or price of crude oil;

•        a material decrease in demand for refined products, renewable fuels or anhydrous ammonia in the markets
served by our pipelines and terminals;

•     political, social or economic instability in the United States or another country that has a detrimental impact on
our customers and our ability to conduct our operations;

•     competition for customers from companies with comparable assets and capabilities;

•         scheduled turnarounds or unscheduled maintenance at refineries or production facilities of customers we
serve;

•     operational problems or catastrophic events affecting our assets or the customers we serve;

•     environmental or regulatory proceedings or other litigation that compel the cessation of all or a portion of the
operations of our assets or those of the customers we serve;

•     increasingly stringent environmental, health, safety and security regulations;

•     a decision by our current customers to redirect products transported in our pipelines or stored in our terminals
to markets not served by our pipelines or terminals, or to transport or store crude oil, refined products or
anhydrous ammonia by means other than our pipelines or storage terminals; and

•        a decision by our current customers to shut down, limit operations of or sell one or more of the
refineries/production facilities we serve to a purchaser that elects not to use our pipelines or terminals.

Our operations are subject to federal, state and local laws and regulations, in the U.S., in Mexico and in
Europe, relating to environmental, health, safety and security that require us to make substantial
expenditures.

Our operations are subject to increasingly stringent international, federal, state and local environmental, health,
safety and security laws and regulations. Transporting, storing and distributing hazardous materials, including
petroleum products, entails the risk of releasing these products into the environment, potentially causing substantial
expenditures for a response action, significant government penalties, liability to government agencies including for
damages to natural resources, personal injury or property damages to private parties and significant business
interruption. Further, our pipeline facilities are subject to the pipeline integrity and safety regulations of various
federal and state regulatory agencies, as well as cybersecurity directives. In recent years, increased regulatory
focus on pipeline integrity, safety and security has resulted in various proposed or adopted regulations. The
implementation of these regulations has required, and the adoption of future regulations could require, us to make
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additional capital or other expenditures, including to install new or modified safety or security measures, or to
conduct new or more extensive inspection and maintenance programs.

Legislative action and regulatory initiatives have resulted in, and could in the future result in, changes to operating
permits, imposition of carbon taxes or methane fees, material changes in operations, increased capital
expenditures and operating costs, increased costs of the goods we transport and/or decreased demand for
products we handle. Future impacts cannot be assessed with certainty at this time. Required expenditures to
modify operations or install pollution control equipment or release prevention and containment systems or other
environmental, health, safety or security measures could materially and adversely affect our business, financial
condition, results of operations and liquidity if these expenditures, as with all costs, are not ultimately reflected in
the tariffs and other fees we receive for our services.

We own or lease a number of properties that were used to transport, store or distribute products for many years
before we acquired them; therefore, such properties were operated by third parties whose handling, disposal or
release of products and wastes was not under our control. Environmental laws and regulations could impose
obligations to conduct assessment or remediation efforts at our facilities, third-party sites where we take wastes for
disposal, or where wastes have migrated. Environmental laws and regulations also may impose joint and several
liability on us Form 10-Q for the conduct of third parties or for actions that complied with applicable requirements
when taken, regardless of negligence or fault. If we were to incur a significant liability pursuant to environmental,
health, safety or security laws or regulations, such a liability could have a material adverse effect on our financial
position.

We operate assets outside of the United States, which exposes us to different legal and regulatory
requirements and additional risk.

A portion of our revenues are generated from our assets located in northern Mexico and Europe. Our foreign
operations are subject to various risks that could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of
operations and financial condition, including political and economic instability from civil unrest; labor strikes; war
and other armed conflict; inflation; currency fluctuations, devaluation and conversion restrictions or other factors.
Any deterioration of social, political, labor or economic conditions, including the increasing threat of terrorist
organizations and drug cartels in Mexico, or affecting a customer with whom we do business, as well as difficulties
in staffing, obtaining necessary equipment and supplies and managing foreign operations, may adversely affect our
operations or financial results. We are also exposed to the risk of foreign and domestic governmental actions that
may: impose additional costs on us; delay permits or otherwise impede our operations; limit or disrupt markets for
our operations, restrict payments or limit the movement of funds; impose sanctions on or otherwise restrict our
ability to conduct business with certain customers or persons or in certain countries; or result in the deprivation of
contract rights. Our operations outside the United States may also be affected by changes in trade protection laws,
policies and measures, and other regulatory requirements affecting trade and investment, including the Foreign
Corrupt Practices Act and foreign laws prohibiting corrupt payments, as well as travel restrictions and import and
export regulations.

We may be unable to obtain or renew permits necessary for our current or proposed operations, which
could inhibit our ability to conduct or expand our business.
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Our facilities operate under a number of federal, state and local permits, licenses and approvals with terms and
conditions containing a significant number of prescriptive limits and performance standards in order to operate.
These limits and standards require a significant amount of monitoring, recordkeeping and reporting in order to
demonstrate compliance quarter ended March 31, 2024 filed with the underlying permit, license or approval.
Noncompliance or incomplete documentation of our compliance status may result in the imposition of fines,
penalties and injunctive relief. In addition, public protest, political activism and responsive government intervention
have made it more difficult for energy companies to acquire the permits required to complete planned infrastructure
projects. A decision by a government agency to deny or delay issuing a new or renewed permit, license or
approval, or to revoke or substantially modify an existing permit, license or approval, or to impose additional
requirements SEC on the renewal could have a material adverse effect on our ability to continue or expand our
operations and on our financial condition, results of operations, cash flows and ability to make distributions to our
unitholders.

We could be subject to liabilities from our assets that predate our acquisition of those assets, but that are
not covered by indemnification rights we have against the sellers of the assets.

We have acquired assets and businesses and we are not always indemnified by the seller for liabilities that
precede our ownership. In addition, in some cases, we have indemnified the previous owners and operators of
acquired assets or businesses. Some of our assets have been used for many years to transport and store crude oil
and refined products, and past releases could require costly future remediation. If a significant release or event
occurred in the past, the liability for which was not retained by the seller, or for which indemnification by the seller is
not available, it could adversely affect our financial position and results of operations. Conversely, if liabilities arise
from assets we have sold, we could incur costs related to those liabilities if the buyer possesses valid
indemnification rights against us with respect to those assets.

Certain of our interstate common carrier pipelines are subject to regulation by the FERC and the Surface
Transportation Board, which could have an adverse impact on our ability to recover the full cost of
operating our pipelines and the revenue we are able to receive from those operations.

Pursuant to the Interstate Commerce Act ("ICA") and various other laws, the FERC regulates tariff rates and terms
and conditions of service for interstate crude oil and refined products movements on common carrier pipelines. The
FERC requires that these rates be just and reasonable and not unduly discriminatory with respect to any shipper.
The FERC or shippers may challenge required pipeline tariff filings, including rates and terms and conditions of
service. Further, other than for rates set under market-based rate authority, if a new rate is challenged by protest
and investigated by the FERC, the FERC may require amounts refunded where such amounts were collected in
excess of the deemed just and reasonable rate. In addition, shippers may challenge by complaint tariff rates and
terms and conditions of service even after they take effect, and the FERC may order a carrier to change its rates
prospectively to a just and reasonable level. A complaining shipper also may obtain reparations for damages
sustained during the two years prior to the date of the complaint.

We are able to use various FERC-authorized rate change methodologies for our interstate pipelines, including
indexed rates, cost-of-service rates, market-based rates and negotiated rates. Typically, we adjust our rates
annually in accordance with the FERC indexing methodology, which currently allows a pipeline to change its rates
within prescribed ceiling levels that are tied to an inflation index. It is possible that the index may result in negative
rate adjustments in some years, or that changes in the index might not be large enough to fully reflect actual
increases in our costs. The FERC’s indexing methodology is subject to review and revision every five years, with
the most recent five-year review occurring in 2020. The FERC has granted us authority to
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May 9, 2024.

charge market-based rates on some of our pipelines, which are not subject to cost-of-service or indexing
constraints. If we were to lose market-based rate authority, however, we could be required to establish rates on
some other basis, such as cost-of-service, which could reduce our revenues and cash flows. Additionally,
competition constrains our rates in various markets, which may force us to reduce certain rates to remain
competitive.

Pursuant to the ICC Termination Act of 1995 ("ITA"), the Surface Transportation Board ("STB") regulates interstate
pipelines carrying products other than gas, oil or water, including the anhydrous ammonia we transport. Unlike the
ICA, which allows the FERC to investigate a carrier’s rates on its own initiative, ITA prescribes the STB may only
investigate issues in response to complaints by shippers and other interested parties. Further, carriers are not
required by the ITA or the STB to report rates charged to transport anhydrous ammonia or other commodities, and
the STB does not routinely collect such information. Adverse changes in the FERC’s or STB’s rate change
methodologies or challenges to our rates that result in significant damages could negatively affect our cash flows,
results of operations and our ability to make distributions to our unitholders.

We do not own all of the land on which our pipelines and facilities are located, and we are therefore subject
to the possibility of increased costs or the inability to retain necessary land use.

Like other pipeline and storage logistics services providers, certain of our pipelines, storage terminals and other
facilities are located on land owned by third parties and governmental agencies that we have obtained the right to
utilize for these purposes through contract (rather than through outright purchase). Many of our rights-of-way or
other property rights are perpetual in duration, but others are for a specific period of time. In addition, some of our
facilities are located on leased premises. A potential loss of property rights through our inability to renew right-of-
way contracts or leases or otherwise retain property rights on acceptable terms or the increased costs to renew
such rights could adversely affect our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows available for
distribution to our unitholders.

Increases in power prices could adversely affect operating expenses and our ability to make distributions
to our unitholders.

Power costs constitute a significant portion of our operating expenses. We use mainly electric power at our pipeline
pump stations and terminals, and such electric power is furnished by various utility companies. Requirements for
utilities to use less carbon intensive power or to add pollution control devices also could cause our power costs to
increase and our cash flows may be adversely affected, which could adversely affect our ability to make
distributions to our unitholders.

Item 6. Exhibits
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Exhibit No. Description

4.2 2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of January 22, 2024, by and among Sunoco LP, Saturn Merger
Sub, LLC, NuStar Energy L.P., Riverwalk Logistics, L.P., NuStar GP, LLC and Sunoco GP, LLC
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of the current report on Form 8-K (File Number 001-35653) filed
by the registrant on January 22, 2024)

2.2 Contribution Agreement, by and among Sunoco LP, SUN Pipeline Holdings LLC, NuStar Permian
Transportation and Storage LLC, NuStar Permian Crude Logistics LLC, NuStar Permian Holdings LLC,
NuStar Logistics, L.P., ET-S Permian Holdings Company LP, ET-S Permian Pipeline Company LLC, ET-S
Permian Marketing Company LLC, Energy Transfer LP, and Energy Transfer Crude Marketing, LLC,
dated as of July 14, 2024 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of the current report on Form 8-K (File
Number 001-35653) filed by the registrant on July 18, 2024)

3.1 Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Limited Partnership of Sunoco LP, dated as of May 8, 2018
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the quarterly report on Form 10-Q (File Number 001-35653)
filed by the registrant on May 10, 2018)

3.2 First Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Susser Petroleum Partners LP, dated
as of September 25, 2012 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the current report on Form 8-K
(File Number 001-35653) filed by the registrant on September 25, 2012)

3.3 Amendment No. 1 to the First Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Susser
Petroleum Partners LP (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 of the current report on Form 8-K (File
Number 001-35653) filed by the registrant on October 28, 2014)

3.4 Amendment No. 2 to the First Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Sunoco LP
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the current report on Form 8-K (File Number 001-35653) filed
by the registrant on August 6, 2015)

3.5 Amendment No. 3 to the First Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Sunoco LP
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the current report on Form 8-K (File Number 001-35653) filed
by the registrant on January 5, 2016)

3.6 Amendment No. 4 to the First Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Sunoco LP
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 of the current report on Form 8-K (File Number 001-35653) filed
by the registrant on June 8, 2016)

3.7 Amendment No. 5 to the First Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Sunoco LP
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the current report on Form 8-K (File Number 001-35653) filed
by the registrant on March 31, 2017)

3.8 Amendment No. 6 to the First Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Sunoco LP
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 of the quarterly report on Form 10-Q (File Number 001-35653)
filed by the registrant on May 10, 2018)
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3.9 Amendment No. 7 to the First Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Sunoco LP
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the quarterly report on Form 10-Q (File Number 001-35653)
filed by the registrant on August 8, 2019)

3.10 Certificate of Formation of Susser Petroleum Partners GP LLC, dated as of June 11, 2012 (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 3.4 of the registration statement on Form S-1 (File Number 333-182276), as
amended, originally filed by the registrant on June 22, 2012)

3.11 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Formation of Susser Petroleum Partners GP LLC
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 of the current report on Form 8-K (File Number 001-35653) filed
by the registrant on October 28, 2014)

3.12 Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement of Susser Petroleum Partners GP LLC,
dated as of September 25, 2012 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 of the current report on Form 8-
K (File Number 001-35653) filed by the registrant on September 25, 2012)
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3.13 Amendment No. 1 to the Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement of Susser
Petroleum Partners GP LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.4 of the current report on Form 8-K
(File Number 001-35653) filed by the registrant on October 28, 2014)

3.14 Amendment No. 2 to the Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement of Sunoco GP
LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 of the current report on Form 8-K (File Number 001-35653)
filed by the registrant on June 8, 2016)

3.15 Amendment No. 3 to the Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement of Sunoco GP
LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 of the quarterly report on Form 10-Q (File Number 001-
35653) filed by the registrant on May 10, 2018)

4.1 4.1^ Indenture, dated as of July 15, 2002, among Valero Logistics Operations, L.P., as Issuer, Valero L.P., as
Guarantor, and The Bank of New York, as Trustee, relating to Senior Debt Securities (incorporated by
references reference to Exhibit 4.1 4.4 of NuStar Energy L.P.’s Current Report the current report on Form
8-K (File No. 001-16417) Number 001-35653) filed July 15, 2002 by the registrant on May 3, 2024)

4.2 4.2^ Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of July 1, 2005, to Indenture dated as of July 15, 2002, as
amended and supplemented, among Valero Logistics Operations, L.P., Valero L.P., Kaneb Pipe Line
Operating Partnership, L.P., and The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A. (incorporated by
references reference to Exhibit 4.02 4.5 of NuStar Energy L.P.’s Quarterly Report the current report on
Form 10-Q 8-K for (File No. 001-16417) for quarter ended June 30, 2005 Number 001-35653) filed by the
registrant on May 3, 2024)
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4.3 4.3^ Instrument of Resignation, Appointment and Acceptance, dated March 31, 2008, among NuStar
Logistics, L.P., NuStar Energy L.P., Kaneb Pipeline Operating Partnership, L.P., The Bank of New York
Trust Company N.A., and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association (incorporated by references reference
to Exhibit 4.05 4.6 of NuStar Energy L.P.’s Annual Report the current report on Form 10-K 8-K for (File No.
001-16417) for year ended December 31, 2008 Number 001-35653) filed by the registrant on May 3,
2024)

4.4 4.4^ Eighth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of April 28, 2017, among NuStar Logistics, L.P., as Issuer,
NuStar Energy L.P., as Guarantor, NuStar Pipeline Operating Partnership L.P., as Affiliate Guarantor, and
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Successor Trustee (incorporated by references reference to
Exhibit 4.4 4.7 of NuStar Energy L.P.’s Current Report the current report on Form 8-K  (File No. 001-
16417) Number 001-35653) filed April 28, 2017 by the registrant on May 3, 2024)

4.5 4.5^ Ninth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of May 22, 2019, among NuStar Logistics, L.P., as Issuer, NuStar
Energy L.P., as Guarantor, NuStar Pipeline Operating Partnership L.P., as Affiliate Guarantor, and Wells
Fargo Bank, National Association, as Successor Trustee (incorporated by references reference to Exhibit
4.3 4.8 of NuStar Energy L.P.’s Current Report the current report on Form 8-K  (File No. 001-
16417) Number 001-35653) filed May 22, 2019 by the registrant on May 3, 2024)

4.6 4.6^ Tenth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of September 14, 2020, among NuStar Logistics, L.P., as Issuer,
NuStar Energy L.P., as Guarantor, NuStar Pipeline Operating Partnership L.P., as Affiliate Guarantor, and
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Successor Trustee (incorporated by references reference to
Exhibit 4.3 4.9 of the current report on Form 8-K (File Number 001-35653) filed by the registrant on May
3, 2024)

4.7 Eleventh Supplemental Indenture, dated as of May 31, 2024, among NuStar Logistics, L.P., as Issuer,
NuStar Energy L.P.’s , as Guarantor, NuStar Pipeline Operating Partnership L.P., as Affiliate Guarantor,
Sunoco LP, as Ultimate Parent Guarantor, the Guarantors party thereto and Computershare Trust
Company, N.A., as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.19 of Sunoco LP’s Current Report on
Form 8-K (File No. 001-16417) 001-35653) filed September 14, 2020 June 5, 2024)

4.7 4.8^ Indenture, dated as of January 22, 2013, among NuStar Logistics, L.P., as Issuer, NuStar Energy L.P., as
Guarantor, and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Trustee, relating to Subordinated Debt
Securities (incorporated (Incorporated by references reference to Exhibit 4.1 of NuStar Energy L.P.’s
Current Report the current report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-16417) Number 001-35653) filed January 22,
2013 by the registrant on May 3, 2024)

4.8 4.9^ First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of January 22, 2013, among NuStar Logistics, L.P., as Issuer,
NuStar Energy L.P., as Parent Guarantor, NuStar Pipeline Operating Partnership L.P., as Affiliate
Guarantor, and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Trustee (incorporated (Incorporated by
references reference to Exhibit 4.2 of NuStar Energy L.P.’s Current Report the current report on Form 8-K
(File No. 001-16417) Number 001-35653)

4.10 Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of May 3, 2024, by and among NuStar Logistics, L.P., as
Issuer, NuStar Energy L.P., as Parent Guarantor, NuStar Pipeline Operating Partnership L.P., as Affiliate
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Guarantor, and Computershare Trust Company, N.A., as Successor Trustee (Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.3 of the current report on Form 8-K (File Number 001-35653) filed January 22, 2013 by the
registrant on May 3, 2024)

4.9 4.11 Indenture, dated as of April 30, 2024, by and among Sunoco LP, the Guarantors party thereto and U.S.
Bank Trust Company, National Association, as Trustee dated April 30, 2024 (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.1 of the current report on Form 8-K (File Number 001-35653) filed by the registrant on April 30,
2024)
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4.12 First
Supplemental
Indenture,
dated as of
May 31,
2024, by and
among
Sunoco LP,
the
Guarantors
party thereto
and U.S.
Bank
National
Association,
as Trustee
(Incorporated
by reference
to Exhibit
4.13 of the
current report
on Form 8-K
(File Number
001-35653)
filed by the
registrant on
June 5, 2024)

4.10 4.13 Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of May 3, 2024 May 31, 2024, by and among
Sunoco LP, NuStar Logistics, L.P. Sunoco Finance Corp., NuStar Energy L.P. the Guarantors
party thereto and U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee, dated May 31 (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.3 of the current report on Form 8-K (File Number 001-35653) filed by
the registrant on June 5, 2024)

Table of Contents

4.14 First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of May 31, 2024, NuStar Pipeline Operating Partnership L.P. by
and Computershare among Sunoco LP, Sunoco Finance Corp., the Guarantors party thereto and U.S.
Bank National Association, as Trustee (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 of the current report on
Form 8-K (File Number 001-35653) filed by the registrant on June 5, 2024)
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4.15 First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of May 31, 2024, by and among Sunoco LP, Sunoco Finance
Corp., the Guarantors party thereto and U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.7 of the current report on Form 8-K (File Number 001-35653) filed by the registrant
on June 5, 2024)

4.16 First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of May 31, 2024, by and among Sunoco LP, Sunoco Finance
Corp., the Guarantors party thereto and U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.9 of the current report on Form 8-K (File Number 001-35653) filed by the registrant
on June 5, 2024)

4.17 First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of May 31, 2024, by and among Sunoco LP, Sunoco Finance
Corp., the Guarantors party thereto and U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.11 of the current report on Form 8-K (File Number 001-35653) filed by the
registrant on June 5, 2024)

4.18 Second Supplement and Amendment to Series 2008 Indenture, dated as of July 15, 2024, among the
Parish of St. James, State of Louisiana, Sunoco LP, Sunoco Finance Corp., the Guarantors party thereto
and U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, as Successor Trustee (incorporated trustee
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the current report on Form 8-K (File Number 001-35653) filed
by the registrant on May 3, 2024)] July 18, 2024)

10.1 4.19 Support Agreement, Second Supplement and Amendment to Series 2010 Indenture, dated as of January
22, 2024 July 15, 2024, by and among  the Parish of St. James, State of Louisiana, Sunoco LP, NuStar
Energy L.P. Sunoco Finance Corp., the Guarantors party thereto and Energy Transfer LP
(incorporated U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, as trustee (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 2.1 4.2 of the current report on Form 8-K (File Number 001-35653) filed by the registrant on
January 22, 2024 July 18, 2024)

22.1 4.20 Second Supplement and Amendment to Series 2010A Indenture, dated as of July 15, 2024, among the
Parish of St. James, State of Louisiana, Sunoco LP, Sunoco Finance Corp., the Guarantors party thereto
and U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, as trustee (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3
of the current report on Form 8-K (File Number 001-35653) filed by the registrant on July 18, 2024)

4.21 Second Supplement and Amendment to Series 2010B Indenture, dated as of July 15, 2024, among the
Parish of St. James, State of Louisiana, Sunoco LP, Sunoco Finance Corp., the Guarantors party thereto
and U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, as trustee (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4
of the current report on Form 8-K (File Number 001-35653) filed by the registrant on July 18, 2024)

4.22 Second Supplement and Amendment to Series 2011 Indenture, dated as of July 15, 2024, among the
Parish of St. James, State of Louisiana, Sunoco LP, Sunoco Finance Corp., the Guarantors party thereto
and U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, as trustee (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5
of the current report on Form 8-K (File Number 001-35653) filed by the registrant on July 18, 2024)

10.1^ Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of May 3, 2024, by and between Sunoco LP,
as borrower, the lenders from time to time party thereto and Bank of America, N.A., as administrative
agent, swingline lender and an LC issuer (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the current report
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agent, swingline lender and an LC issuer (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the current report
on Form 8-K (File Number 001-35653) filed by the registrant on May 3, 2024)

10.2^ Waiver Letter and Second Amendment, dated May 3, 2024, by Wells Fargo Bank, National Association
and acknowledged and accepted by NuStar Energy L.P., NuStar Logistics, L.P., NuStar Pipeline
Operating Partnership L.P. and the lenders party thereto (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the
current report on Form 8-K (File Number 001-35653) filed by the registrant on May 3, 2024)

10.3 Parent Guaranty, dated as of May 3, 2024, by Sunoco LP in favor of Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association, as administrative agent (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the current report on
Form 8-K (File Number 001-35653) filed by the registrant on May 3, 2024)

10.4^ Second Amended and Restated 5-Year Revolving Credit Agreement, dated as of January 28, 2022,
among NuStar Logistics, L.P., NuStar Energy L.P., NuStar Pipeline Operating Partnership L.P., Wells
Fargo Bank, National Association, as Administrative Agent, and the Lenders party thereto (Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the current report on Form 8-K (File Number 001-35653) filed by the
registrant on May 3, 2024)

10.5^ First Amendment to Second Amended and Restated 5-Year  Revolving Credit Agreement, dated as of
June 30, 2023, among NuStar Logistics, L.P., NuStar Energy L.P., NuStar Pipeline Operating Partnership
L.P., Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, and the lenders party thereto (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.5 of the current report on Form 8-K (File Number 001-35653) filed by the registrant on May 3,
2024)

10.6^ Receivables Financing Agreement, dated as of June 15, 2015, by and among NuStar Finance LLC, as
borrower, NuStar Energy L.P., as servicer, the lenders and group agents from time to time party thereto
and PNC Bank, National Association, as administrative agent (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6
of the current report on Form 8-K (File Number 001-35653) filed by the registrant on May 3, 2024)
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10.7^ Omnibus Amendment, dated as of January 15, 2016, which is the First Amendment to Receivables
Financing Agreement and the Purchase and Sale Agreement, by and among NuStar Finance LLC,
NuStar Energy L.P., the lenders and group agents party thereto, and PNC Bank, National Association, as
administrative agent (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 of the current report on Form 8-K (File
Number 001-35653) filed by the registrant on May 3, 2024)

10.8^ Second Amendment to Receivables Financing Agreement, dated as of September 20, 2017, by and
among NuStar Finance LLC, NuStar Energy L.P., the lenders and group agents party thereto and PNC
Bank, National Association, as administrative agent (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 of the
current report on Form 8-K (File Number 001-35653) filed by the registrant on May 3, 2024)

10.9^ Third Amendment to Receivables Financing Agreement, dated as of March 28, 2018, by and among
NuStar Finance LLC, NuStar, the lenders and group agents party thereto and PNC Bank, National
A i i d i i i (I d b f E hibi 10 9 f h
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Association, as administrative agent (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 of the current report on
Form 8-K (File Number 001-35653) filed by the registrant on May 3, 2024)

10.10^ Fourth Amendment to Receivables Financing Agreement, dated as of April 29, 2019, by and among
NuStar Finance LLC, NuStar Energy L.P., the lenders and group agents party thereto and PNC Bank,
National Association, as administrative agent (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 of the current
report on Form 8-K (File Number 001-35653) filed by the registrant on May 3, 2024)

10.11^ Fifth Amendment to Receivables Financing Agreement, dated as of September 3, 2020, by and among
NuStar Finance LLC, NuStar Energy L.P., the lenders and group agents party thereto and PNC Bank,
National Association, as administrative agent (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 of the current
report on Form 8-K (File Number 001-35653) filed by the registrant on May 3, 2024)

10.12^ Sixth Amendment to Receivables Financing Agreement, dated as of January 28, 2022 by and among
NuStar Finance LLC, NuStar Energy L.P., the lenders and group agents party thereto and PNC Bank,
National Association, as administrative agent (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 of the current
report on Form 8-K (File Number 001-35653) filed by the registrant on May 3, 2024)

10.13^ Seventh Amendment to Receivables Financing Agreement, dated as of June 29, 2023, by and among
NuStar Finance LLC, NuStar Energy L.P., the lenders and group agents party thereto and PNC Bank,
National Association, as administrative agent (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 of the current
report on Form 8-K (File Number 001-35653) filed by the registrant on May 3, 2024)

10.14^ Eighth Amendment to Receivables Financing Agreement, dated as of May 3, 2024, by and among NuStar
Finance LLC, as borrower, NuStar Energy L.P., as servicer, and PNC Bank, National Association, as a
lender, group agent and as administrative agent (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 of the current
report on Form 8-K (File Number 001-35653) filed by the registrant on May 3, 2024)

10.15^ Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated as of June 15, 2015, by and among NuStar Finance, as borrower,
NuStar Energy L.P., as servicer, and NuStar and the subsidiaries of NuStar named therein, as originators
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 of the current report on Form 8-K (File Number 001-35653)
filed by the registrant on May 3, 2024)

10.16^ Second Amendment to Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated as of September 20, 2017, by and among,
NuStar Energy L.P., NS Finance and certain affiliates of NuStar as original originators and additional
originators (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 of the current report on Form 8-K (File Number
001-35653) filed by the registrant on May 3, 2024)

10.17^ Third Amendment to Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated as of May 3, 2024, by and among NuStar
Finance LLC, as buyer, NuStar Energy L.P., as servicer, and NuStar Energy L.P. and its subsidiaries
named therein, as originators (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 of the current report on Form 8-
K (File Number 001-35653) filed by the registrant on May 3, 2024)

10.18^ Lease Agreement between the Parish of St. James, State of Louisiana and NuStar Logistics, L.P. dated
as of June 1, 2008 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 of the current report on Form 8-K (File
Number 001-35653) filed by the registrant on May 3, 2024)

10 19^ First Supplement and Amendment to Lease Agreement (Series 2008) dated June 1 2020 among the

https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1110805/000111080518000007/exhbit1001-thirdamendmentt.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1110805/000111080519000066/ex10_1arfourthamendment.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1110805/000111080520000069/a20200903exhibit1001.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1110805/000114036122003192/brhc10033259_ex10-2.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1110805/000114036123032469/brhc20055304_ex10-02.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1552275/000119312524130842/d817862dex1014.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1110805/000111080515000021/exhibit101-purchaseandsale.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1110805/000111080517000035/exhibit1001-psasecondamend.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1552275/000119312524130842/d817862dex1017.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1110805/000114036120013102/ex10_1.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1110805/000114036120013102/ex10_2.htm


REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com |
Contact Us
©2024 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including
by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written
consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are
registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies.

72/81

10.19 First Supplement and Amendment to Lease Agreement (Series 2008), dated June 1, 2020, among the
Parish of St. James, State of Louisiana, NuStar Logistics, L.P., NuStar Energy L.P. and NuStar Pipeline
Operating Partnership L.P. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 of the current report on Form 8-K
(File Number 001-35653) filed by the registrant on May 3, 2024)

10.20^ Second Supplement and Amendment to Lease Agreement (Series 2008), dated July 15, 2024, among
the Parish of St. James, State of Louisiana, NuStar Logistics, L.P., Sunoco LP and certain of Sunoco LP’s
subsidiaries (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the current report on Form 8-K (File Number
001-35653) filed by the registrant on July 18, 2024).

10.21^ Lease Agreement Between Parish of St. James, State of Louisiana and NuStar Logistics, L.P. dated as of
July 1, 2010 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.20 of the current report on Form 8-K (File Number
001-35653) filed by the registrant on May 3, 2024)
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10.22^ First Supplement and Amendment to Lease Agreement (Series 2010), dated June 1, 2020, among the
Parish of St. James, State of Louisiana, NuStar Logistics, L.P., NuStar Energy L.P. and NuStar Pipeline
Operating Partnership L.P. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 of the current report on Form 8-K
(File Number 001-35653) filed by the registrant on May 3, 2024)

10.23^ Second Supplement and Amendment to Lease Agreement (Series 2010), dated July 15, 2024, among
the Parish of St. James, State of Louisiana, NuStar Logistics, L.P., Sunoco LP and certain of Sunoco LP’s
subsidiaries (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 of the current report on Form 8-K (File Number
001-35653) filed by the registrant on July 18, 2024)

10.24^ Lease Agreement between the Parish of St. James, State of Louisiana and NuStar Logistics, L.P. dated
as of October 1, 2010 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.22 of the current report on Form 8-K (File
Number 001-35653) filed by the registrant on May 3, 2024)

10.25^ First Supplement and Amendment to Lease Agreement (Series 2010A), dated June 1, 2020, among the
Parish of St. James, State of Louisiana, NuStar Logistics, L.P., NuStar Energy L.P. and NuStar Pipeline
Operating Partnership L.P. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.23 of the current report on Form 8-K
(File Number 001-35653) filed by the registrant on May 3, 2024)

10.26^ Second Supplement and Amendment to Lease Agreement (Series 2010A), dated July 15, 2024, among
the Parish of St. James, State of Louisiana, NuStar Logistics, L.P., Sunoco LP and certain of Sunoco LP’s
subsidiaries (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 of the current report on Form 8-K (File Number
001-35653) filed by the registrant on July 18, 2024)

10.27^ Lease Agreement between Parish of St. James, State of Louisiana and NuStar Logistics, L.P. dated as of
December 1, 2010 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.24 of the current report on Form 8-K (File
Number 001-35653) filed by the registrant on May 3, 2024)

10.28^ First Supplement and Amendment to Lease Agreement (Series 2010B), dated June 1, 2020, among the
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pp g ( ) g
Parish of St. James, State of Louisiana, NuStar Logistics, L.P., NuStar Energy L.P. and NuStar Pipeline
Operating Partnership L.P. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.25 of the current report on Form 8-K
(File Number 001-35653) filed by the registrant on May 3, 2024)

10.29^ Second Supplement and Amendment to Lease Agreement (Series 2010B), dated July 15, 2024, among
the Parish of St. James, State of Louisiana, NuStar Logistics, L.P., Sunoco LP and certain of Sunoco LP’s
subsidiaries (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 of the current report on Form 8-K (File Number
001-35653) filed by the registrant on July 18, 2024)

10.30^ Lease Agreement between Parish of St. James, State of Louisiana and NuStar Logistics, L.P. dated as of
August 1, 2011 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.26 of the current report on Form 8-K (File
Number 001-35653) filed by the registrant on May 3, 2024)

10.31^ First Supplement and Amendment to Lease Agreement (Series 2011), dated June 1, 2020, among the
Parish of St. James, State of Louisiana, NuStar Logistics, L.P., NuStar Energy L.P. and NuStar Pipeline
Operating Partnership L.P. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.27 of the current report on Form 8-K
(File Number 001-35653) filed by the registrant on May 3, 2024)

10.32^ Second Supplement and Amendment to Lease (Series 2011), dated July 15, 2024, among the Parish of
St. James, State of Louisiana, NuStar Logistics, L.P., Sunoco LP and certain of Sunoco LP’s subsidiaries
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 of the current report on Form 8-K (File Number 001-35653)
filed by the registrant on July 18, 2024)

22.1* List of Guarantor and Issuer Subsidiaries (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 22.1 of the quarterly report
on Form 10-Q (File Number 001-35653) filed by the registrant on November 2, 2023)

31.1 * Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

31.2 * Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

32.1 ** Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

32.2 **
Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

101* The following financial information from the Partnership’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, formatted in Inline XBRL (Inline eXtensible Business Reporting
Language): (i) Consolidated Balance Sheets, (ii) Consolidated Statements of Operations and
Comprehensive Income, (iii) Consolidated Statements of Equity, (iv) Consolidated Statements of Cash
Flows and (v) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

104 Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101)

* Filed herewith

** Furnished herewith
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^ Certain schedules and other similar attachments to this exhibit have been omitted from this filing pursuant
to Item 601(a)(5) of Regulation S-K. The Registrant will provide a copy of such omitted documents to the
Securities and Exchange Commission upon request.

Table of Contents

SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this Report to
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

 

SUNOCO LP

By Sunoco GP LLC, its general partner

Date: May 9, 2024 August 8, 2024 By /s/ Rick Raymer

Rick Raymer

Vice President, Controller and

Principal Accounting Officer

(In his capacity as principal accounting
officer)

30 39

List of Guarantor and Issuer Subsidiaries

The following entities are issuers, co-issuers or guarantors of (i) the 6.000% senior notes due 2027, 5.875% senior
notes due 2028, 7.000% senior notes due 2028, 4.500% senior notes due 2029 and 4.500% senior notes due 2030,
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each issued by Sunoco LP and Sunoco Finance Corp. (collectively, the “Legacy SUN Notes”), (ii) the 7.000% senior
notes due 2029 and 7.250% senior notes due 2032, each issued by Sunoco LP (collectively, the “New SUN Notes”),
and (iii) the 5.750% senior notes due 2025, 6.000% senior notes due 2026, 5.625% senior notes due 2027 and 6.375%
senior notes due 2030, each issued by NuStar Logistics, L.P. (collectively, the “Legacy NuStar Notes”).

Name of Entity

Jurisdiction of
Organization or
Formation

Legacy SUN
Notes

New SUN
Notes

Legacy
NuStar Notes

Sunoco LP Delaware Co-Issuer Issuer Guarantor

Aloha Petroleum LLC Delaware Guarantor Guarantor Guarantor

Aloha Petroleum, Ltd. Hawaii Guarantor Guarantor Guarantor

Sunmarks, LLC Delaware Guarantor Guarantor Guarantor

Sunoco Midstream LLC (formerly Sunoco Caddo
LLC) Delaware Guarantor Guarantor Guarantor

Sunoco Finance Corp. Delaware Co-Issuer Guarantor Guarantor

Sunoco, LLC Delaware Guarantor Guarantor Guarantor

Sunoco NLR LLC Delaware Guarantor Guarantor Guarantor

Sunoco Refined Products LLC Delaware Guarantor Guarantor Guarantor

Sunoco Retail LLC Pennsylvania Guarantor Guarantor Guarantor

NuStar Energy L.P. Delaware Guarantor Guarantor Guarantor

NuStar Logistics, L.P. Delaware Guarantor Guarantor Issuer

NuStar Pipeline Operating Partnership L.P. Delaware Guarantor Guarantor Guarantor

NuStar Permian Transportation and Storage, LLC Delaware Guarantor Guarantor Guarantor

NuStar Pipeline Partners L.P. Delaware Guarantor Guarantor Guarantor

NuStar Permian Crude Logistics, LLC Delaware Guarantor Guarantor Guarantor

NuStar Permian Holdings, LLC Delaware Guarantor Guarantor Guarantor

Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Joseph Kim, certify that:

https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us


REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com |
Contact Us
©2024 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including
by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written
consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are
registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies.

76/81

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Sunoco LP (the "registrant");

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end
of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the
case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.
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Date: May 9, 2024 August 8, 2024 /s/ Joseph Kim

  Joseph Kim

  President and Chief Executive Officer of Sunoco
GP LLC, the general partner of Sunoco LP

Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Dylan A. Bramhall, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Sunoco LP (the "registrant");

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end
of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the
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case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: May 9, 2024 August 8, 2024 /s/ Dylan A. Bramhall

  Dylan A. Bramhall

  Chief Financial Officer of Sunoco GP
LLC, the general partner of Sunoco LP

Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the quarterly report of Sunoco LP (the “Partnership”) on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the
“Report”), I, Joseph Kim, as President and Chief Executive Officer of Sunoco GP LLC, the general partner of the
Partnership, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
that to my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
results of operations of the Partnership.
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Date: May 9, 2024 August 8, 2024 /s/ Joseph Kim

  Joseph Kim

  President and Chief Executive Officer of
Sunoco GP LLC, the general partner of
Sunoco LP

 
This certification accompanies the Report pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and shall not,
except to the extent required by such Act, be deemed filed by the Partnership for purposes of Section 18 of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the quarterly report of Sunoco LP (the “Partnership”) on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the
“Report”), I, Dylan A. Bramhall, as Chief Financial Officer of Sunoco GP LLC, the general partner of the Partnership,
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to my
knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
results of operations of the Partnership.

Date: May 9, 2024 August 8, 2024 /s/ Dylan A. Bramhall

  Dylan A. Bramhall

  Chief Financial Officer of Sunoco GP LLC, the
general partner of Sunoco LP
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This certification accompanies the Report pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and shall not,
except to the extent required by such Act, be deemed filed by the Partnership for purposes of Section 18 of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
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